Time Line of the Finstad Farm

The time line is meant to summarize the struggles of the Finstads since 2006. This will hopefully give an

understanding of the lack of legal Jurisdiction over signed agreements.

2005

The Finstad’s filed Bankruptcy

. David Johnson was the bankruptcy attorney for John-and Lorie.
2. Brad Sinclair was the attorney for Beresford Bancorp (Frank Farrar)
3. October 21, 2005 The negotiations for the Settlement Agreement were started.

(Documented)

. October 24, 2005 Meeting in front of Judge Hill in the bankruptcy court.

(Documented in Transcript)

. October 25, 2005 Letter from Brad Sinclair to David Johnson in regards to the Settlement

Agreement. (Documented)

. November 4, 2005 David Johnson’s letter to Brad Sinclair about attorney fees.

(Documented)
December 30, 2005 Quit Claim Deed with Anti-Merger was signed by John and Lorie Finstad.
(Documented)
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October 9, 2006. (Documented)

. January 10, 2006 A Deed in Lieu Foreclosure was entered into as part of the bankruptcy plan.

(Documented) A Settlement Agreement was entered into between the two parties. An
amount was settled on what was owed, and a rate of interest was settled on, as well as
other stipulations included ensuring the Finstad’s interests. (Documented)

. January 10, 2006 A Memorandum of Lease and Option to Purchase was entered into.

(Documented)
March 15, 2006 A communication to further confirm the base amount owed to Beresford.
(Documented)

. March 17, 2006 A Farm Lease Agreement was entered into between Brian Vculek and the

Finstads to guarantee a steady stream of farm income. (Documented)

. May 16, 2006 David Johnson emailed Brad Sinclair about a commitment letter from Jim

Gord’s Banker at First Farm Credit. A loan was secured from Jim Gord. The purpose of the
loan was to pay off Beresford, per the Settlement Agreement that was provided for in the
confirmed bankruptcy plan. (Documented)

. May 25, 2006 and June 12, 2006 David Johnson sent Brad Sinclair a payoff calculation, but

Beresford added extra fees and interest so the amount that the Finstads had calculated, and
the amount to pay off Beresford, was different. (Documented)

. June 7, 2006 Money was paid to Beresford from a loan that Finstads obtained from Jim and

Wendy Gord. Beresford added several fees that were not in the confirmed plan amount.
This created a 15 and a 2™ mortgage on the Finstad Farm, with Beresford having the 1%



mortgage and the Gords having the 2™ mortgage. The 2™ Mortgage Agreement was signed
by the Finstads. (Documented)

7. July 31, 2006 A letter from the Sheyenne Valley Grazing Association (SVGA) was sent to
Beresford questioning the ownership of the Finstad Farm. (Documented)

8. August 3, 2006 A letter from Frank Farrar, as Chairman of the Board of Beresford Bancorp, to
the SVGA stated that the only thing that had changed was the way that the Finstad Farm was
being financed. (Documented)

9. October 9, 2006 A letter from Brad Sinclair to David Johnson as to the disbursement of the

money from Jim Gord. (Documented)

10. October 10, 2006 A further understanding of the disbursement of funds. (Documented)

11. October 31, 2006 A letter from Don Eppler, the attorney representing the Sheyenne Valley

Grazing Association, reaffirms that the Finstads changed financing from a mortgage to a
contract for deed. There was no change of ownership or control of property.

(Documented)
2007
1. Due to the rental contract between Brian Vculek and the Finstads, it was determined by the
Sheyenne Valley Grazing Board that the Finstads did not have enough land to meet their
FUle Fequirements, and the Finstad Farm was denied Its grazing permit i the years2007;
2008, and 2009.
2008

1. There was still no resolution of the amount of money owed to Beresford. There was a
difference of opinion with respect to a breach of the Settlement Agreement that was part of
the confirmed bankruptcy plan.

May 22, 2008 A limited warranty deed was prepared and signed by Beresford’s Frank Farrar,
but the Finstads only received a copy of the limited warranty deed, not the original.
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(Documented)
. June 11, 2008 A notice of default was sent to John and Lorie Finstad by Beresford.
There was no default according to the terms within the Settlement Agreement.
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(Documented)

June 20, 2008 A letter from Mike Nelson, Jim Gord’s attorney, to David Johnson, the
Finstad’s attorney. This letter discussed the payoff of Jim and Wendy Gord by Warren
Anderson. (See no. 5 below.) Nelson made it clear that Judge Hill and the bankruptcy court
should have a say in this situation, and that he was not a bankruptcy attorney. (Documented)
August 8, 2008 Warren Anderson, an attorney and investor that John Finstad had been in
communication with, contacted Brad Sinclair so that he could make a decision on whether or
not to buy out Gords’ loans. (Documented)

6. August 13, 2008 A letter from Jon Brakke(another attorney of Gord’s) to David Johnson
stated that Gord’s loans were never approved by the bankruptcy court and that any discharge
associated with the bankruptcy would not have any effect on the debt to his clients, the
Gord'’s. (Documented)

7. September 2008 Beresford claimed that there was a default in the bankruptcy agreement, so
they put the Finstad farm up for sale in 4 different parcels, pursuant to the Settlement
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Agreement that had been signed. [t should be noted that Beresford only had the right to sell
enough land to pay their calculated debt, according to the bankruptcy confirmed plan.

(Documented)

8. September 2, 2008 There were bids up to $950,000.00 without any oral bidding.
(Documented)

9. The sale was called off due to negotiations between the Gords and Beresford. There was a
desire by Warren Anderson and Jim Gord to pay off Beresford.

10. Warren Anderson was willing to pay off Gord in full, but there was a suggestion that Jim
pay Beresford off, being there was already an investment by Jim already. Jim Gord gave his
word to Warren that he was not interested in taking the Finstad Farm, but only to get his
money back. Warren took him at his word and bowed out of the negotiations to pay off
Beresford. (See Letters of Communication)

11. September 2, 2008 Bids for the sale of the land were received by attorney Brad
Sinclair. John and Lorie Finstad put a bid in on the farm. According to the Settlement
Agreement, Beresford, could only be paid what they were owed. This amount was disputed.
Beresford calculated an amount of $64,000.00+/-, and the Finstad’s attorney had calculated
an amount of $16,000.00+/-.

12 5eptember/October 2008 THere Were Negotiations between Berestora s
attorney and Jim Gord'’s attorney about paying off Beresford without the knowledge of
John and Lorie Finstad. Once the sale of the land was called off, the Finstads were notified
of the negotiations between the parties. The Finstads weren’t given the opportunity to
personally monitor the negotiations. (Documented)

13. October 9, 2008 There was a letter drafted from Brad Sinclair to Jon Brakke in which
Beresford confirmed that the Gord’s and Bersford had been negotiating an agreement
between themselves about the Finstad farm and a way for Beresford to be paid off. The
main point sticking point was on how Bersford was going to ensure their obligation to the
Finstads that was contained in the Settlement Agreement that had been confirmed in the
bankruptcy court. (Documented)

14. November 28, 2008 The Quit Claim Deed, drafted by Jon Brakke, was signed by Frank Farrar
and in the possession of Brad Sinclair.

15. December 1, 2008 Brad Sinclair and Jon Brakke met to discuss the Quit Claim Deed
and the Assighment Agreement that Sinclair had drafted. The intention of the Assignment
agreement was to bind Jim and Wendy Gord , Beresford, and the Finstads to the Settlement
Agreement contained in the bankruptcy plan. Brakke grabbed the QCD that Farrar had signed
from Brad’s desk and stated he saw it differently. Hethen left with the QCD.

16. December 2, 2008 An early morning e-mail communication from Sinclair to Brakke stated
that there was no permission to file the QCD, for reasons explained in the e-mail.
(Documented)

17. December 2, 2008 at 4:30P.M. The stolen Quit Claim Deed was recorded at the Ransom
County Court House. (Documented)

12.1-23-02. Theft of property. A person is guilty of theft if he:

1. Knowingly takes or exercises unauthorized control over, or makes an unauthorized transfer of



an interest in, the property of another with intent to deprive the owner thereof; 2. Knowingly obtains
the property of another by deception or by threat with intent to deprive the owner thereof, or
intentionally deprives another of his property by deception or by threat; or 3. Knowingly receives,
retains, or disposes of property of another which has been stolen, with intent to deprive the owner
thereof.
12.1-23-04. Theft of property lost, mislaid, or delivered by mistake. A person is guilty of theft if he:
1. Retains or disposes of property of another when he knows it has been lost or mislaid; or
2. Retains or disposes of property of another when he knows it has been delivered under a mistake as
to the identity of the recipient or as to the nature or amount of the property, and with intent to deprive
the owner of it, he fails to take readily available and reasonable measures to restore the property to a
person entitled to have it.

18. Copy of the QCD. (Documented)

19. Brads letter to Jon Brakke about the return of the QCD to him.

20.. Franks letter that he was more than willing to cooperate with the Finstads in any legal

action that would be necessary for them to maintain their rights to the land.

1. January 28, 2009 A letter from Brad Sinclair to John Finstad stating that despite Jim Gord’s
assurances to Warren Anderson about working with the Finstad’s and not wanting to steal
the Finstad farm, the Gord gang (Jon Brakke and Mike Nelson) were offering to sell the
Finstad Farm to Brian Vculek for $1,000,000.00. The offer was denied and a summarization
of the Beresford obligation to the Finstad’s was memorialized.

2. February 3, 2009 Brad Sinclair sent a letter to John and Lorie and Jon Brakke summarizing to
past events and that given everybody has had full knowledge of what is expected of the Gord
Gang, Beresford will go forward and cash the Cashier’s check. The check was being held
pending the return of the QCD that was stolen from Brads office at a December 2009

~ meeting. (Documented)

3. February-March 2009 Despite all of the legal actions Jim and John spoke several times and
given all the legal actions going on, the Veculek Contract was cancelled and the Finstad farm
for 2009 was rented to Troy Goltz.

4. John finding a renter for Jim Gord.

A. Jim and | had to rent the land out for the 2009 cropping year, | did not have the
equipment to do the work, so | contacted several people and Troy Goltz was the person
who rented the land for the 2009 cropping season.

B. There was a Rental Contract with Brian Vculek for an extended period of time. When this
situation arose, there was a cancellation of the existing Contract that we had between
John and Lorie and Beresford and Brian Vculek. Brad Sinclair as Beresford’s Attorney
contacted Brian and notified him that the contract was in the names of John and Lorie
Finstad and Beresford Bancorp and that only John and Lorie had signed the contract and
that Beresford had not signed the contract, therefore the contact was not a valid



agreement with him. By the cancellation of this contract we were free to rent the land to
anybody we wanted to. There was one thing, Brian had put a special new end gun on

my south pivot, Brian removed his end gun and the New Renter (Troy Goltz) had K-T
[rrigation replace it with a new end gun. [ asked Jim if he could pay for the end gun, being
he was receiving the $48,000.00 in rent for the 2009 cropping year. Jim stated that the
pivot was owned by John and Lorie and that it was the Finstad’s financial responsibility, |
waited for 2 years and then [ paid K-T irrigation for the end gun to the tune of $1,700.00
and we were never paid for the endgun.

. Mike Nelsons letter to us and how | spoke to him about the management agreement and

how | disagreed on the statement that Jim owned our farm. Also we need the letter that |
was sent to me via E-mail by Mike Nelson’s paralegal and the promises that were made and
never carried out. In the summer Mike Nelson went to the Grazing Board and claimed that
Jim Gord was the title holder of the Finstad Farm. The Board ruled in favor of Jim Gord. The
board did not make an attempt to contact their attorney (Don Eppler) whose previous
opinion stated that we were the owners subject to the Settlement Agreement and the
Confirmed Bankruptcy Plan. Don had previously agreed to our position of ownership to the
Grazing Association in his previous assessment of our ownership. (Documented)

9.

10

11.
12.

13

. Finstads didn’t ever receive the communication Dack that was promised [Tom ViTke NeTsoTT:
. Jim sold my cows and kept the money.
. The Finstad property has control of a Grazing Permit on Federal land located just east of

Lisbon N.Dak. This permit is not owed but is tied to the Finstad deeded property. Even
though there is no deed to this property it is very valuable. The Permit is for 163 head of cow
calf pairs for 5.5 months. The cost each year is about $3.50/month for 5.5 months at a total
cost of about $20.00 for the year on Federal Land and for rent on private land would be
$175.00-$250.00 per head. You can obviously see that there is a tremendous advantage in
having a Federal Grazing Permit.

First year’s calf crop.

A. There was 102% calf crop

. My discussion with Brian Stotts from the U.S. Forest Service about waiving the 3 year

Federal and Grazing Association rule with regard to the buying and selling land when a

Federal Grazing Permit is associated with privately owned land back to the same previous

owner. Brian refused to waive the rule even though there were no changes in property

from our ownership.

The Grazing Association did not want to waive the rule either.

My conversation with Jim about the depreciable assets onour Farm. [ told Jim what

everything is worth but that he did not own my farm. Jim’s response was that “I may as well

take advantage of the tax savings, until | paid him off.

. Summer 2009 Mike Nelson (Attorney for Jim Gord) was present at a Sheyenne Valley
Grazing Association meeting where he represented Jim about the Finstad Farm ownership.
Despite the opinion of the SVGA’s attorney the board was convinced by Mike Nelson that
ownership had changed and there were questions about the permit.



14. Fall 2009 Jim needed to prove need for the Federal Grazing Permit, so we were living on
our farm and despite my objections, Jim and | worked together. We were forced to sign
over our grazing permit to Jim and Wendy Gord in order to preserve the Permit assigned to
our deeded acres.

15. September, There is a federal government a rule that deeded land with a Federal Grazing
permit may not be sold back to the previous owner for a period of 3 years. So given that
rule | spoke to Brian Stotts (Forest Service Ranger) about the potential of waiving the
Federal Regulation, after all there were no changes from what the land was before and in
the before and after on the land and the Grazing Permit. Brian denied my request, stating
that he did not want to get in the middle of the situation.

16. November 30, 2009 Jim bought my cows on a contract with the promise to sell them back
me. In a letter to attorney Lyle Thomason he stated that he was drafting an agreement, so
| signed the Management Agreement but | never received the separate Agreement that
was promised in the Email. (Management Agreement and Email Documented)

17. December 2, 2009 Jim Gord bought cows from Scott and Al Johnson to make sure that
there were enough cows on the farm for the SVGA rules.

18. In December John received a phone call from Jim, he requested the values of all the

Depreciable assets on the farm, Ex (Irrigators, buildings etc.) | asked him Why, he stated

that he wanted to Depreciate the assets, | told him that he did not own them and that |

still did, his reply was “I may as well take advantage of them until you pay me off”, so |

told him the amounts and told him that if he gets caught it is his fault.

19. December | was asked to sign over my Water Permit over to Jim and Wendy, | refused to
sign it over in an attempt to give me some power.
20. Jim bought a tractor to feed cows; | sold my tractor to pay the attorney.

December 2009-December 2011
From the time Jim Gord purchased his cow herd in December of 2009 until the Finstad eviction hearing
in December of 2011, John took care of Jim’s cattle and calved two calf crops without payment or wages
from Jim, as Jim Gord had led the Finstads to believe they’d be able to buy back the farm after the three
year period of the U.S. Forest Service-Grazing Association rule had expired. Gord was to cover all
expenses for his cattle and John would cover the labor as a way of paying him back for his help on the
loan for the farm. However, during this time period, the Finstads were also covering veterinarian costs,
tractor repairs, and the electricity cost associated with the cattle waterers including the pumping of the
water and heating of the pump house during the winter months. During the winter of 2010-2011, John
expressed concern to Gord that the hay that was being delivered by Troy Goltz was of poor quality,
which in turn fell on deaf ears. Some cows died of malnutrition while others began to abort their calves.
Given the condition of the cattle, many of the cows did not breed back that next summer. By March of
2011, feed was no longer being delivered to the farm, and Jim was not returning John’s phone
messages. The Finstads were not in the financial position, nor was it their responsibility, to purchase
feed for Gord’s cattle. In the meantime, John was able to obtain some older hay and transportation for
the feed from friends. Gord would not respond to John's calls until john contacted Gord’s banker in
llinois. After that, John was able to procure some good hay for the cattle, some of which Gord has not
_ paid for as of 2020. In December of 2011, three years after the deed was stolen, the time period by rule




of the Sheyenne Valley Grazing Association and the U.S. Forest Service had passed, and the Finstads
wanted to pay off Gord. Rather than letting the Finstads pay him back as he had promised, Gord
proceeded to evict them from the Finstad Family Farm. Later Jim Gord would testify at the eviction
hearing of December 2011 that John did not properly take care of the cattle and was interfering with the

farming and ranching operation. (See Scott and Al Johnson'’s Letter)

2010

. May-November Troy Goltz custom farmed the land for Jim. John operated the pivots and

took care of the cows in the pasture. The calf crop yielded 102%

_In December the calves were sold. The market had gone up significantly, and Jim sold

the calves for almost what he paid for the cows 9 months previously.

. In the winter 2010-2011 there was a falling out between Troy Goltz and Gord.

. After the split between Troy Goltz and Jim, Troy quit delivering hay in March.

Repeated attempts to contact Jim were ignored, and John finally had to call Jim Gord’s
banker to get ahold of Jim. (Documented)

. Given the feed situation the cattle were weak, and they did not calf well.

2012

. John gave Gord Ron Rotenberger’s name as someone who could custom farm the Tandin ™

2011.

. On December 2, there was an eviction hearing in Ransom County Court. Jim Gord referred to

Scott and Al Johnson’s alleged interference by me in the farming operation. (See Scottand
Al's letter setting the record straight. Jim perjured himself on the stand.)

. At the eviction hearing the Finstads negotiated a deal to remain on the farm until February 1,

2012 so that they would have time to remove their personal property after 25 years on the
farm. (The court could have given the Finstads a five day eviction notice.)

. Ron Rotenberger’s stepson wanted to ranch, so Ron and his stepson took over

the cattle operation after the eviction hearing. There was another lie to the Grazing
Association about the cattle. | will explain in person, but there was deceit and total disregard
for the Grazing Association rules.

. John heard that Ron had bought more cows to replace all of the cows that either died or

were open, because of the lack of feed and the winter. How was it spending Jim’s money for
new cows, he stated “it was fun”, | then asked him why if his stepson is buying the original
herd from why did he not buy the cows himself, he referred to the agreement as a way to get
around the Grazing Association rules.

. Summary of Judgement Motion in Ransom County Court in favor of Jim Gord.

A. The definition of Summary of Judgement Motion is that there are no questions of fact
in a case before the Court. Was the Deed truly delivered, there were no depositions
and testimony allowed by John Finstad or his support of their position.

. My underground irrigation pipe was not drained and there was an underground break. Jim

Gord went to K-T Irrigation and complained about hard times and refused to pay the whole
bill. Sign of his character
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. | had heard that Ron had bought more cows to replace all of the cows that either died or
were open, because of the lack of feed and the winter. How was it spending Jim’s money for
new cows, he stated “it was fun”, | then asked him why if his Step son is buying the original
herd from why did he not buy the cows himself, he referred to the agreement as a way to get
around the Grazing Association rules.

. In the spring, Ron was still farming my land and | rode in the tractor with Ron and [ asked why
he was seeding alfalfa on my land. | told him that he was doing it for Jim. |asked him why?
If his Step-son was buying the cows on a contract from Jim then it would be his responsibility
to raise the feed. He stated that Jim still owed the cows but because of the Grazing
Association rules they had to lie and the cows were still Jims and that the purchase contract
was just a front to get around the rules.

. In the June we were getting ready to go to court. There was plan to Depose many people
who would have a direct bearing on the case. Frank Farrar could not be deposed because of
a personal tragedy in his lawyer’s family.

1. Fall 2014 The Gord'’s still have possession of the Finstad farm.
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. Appealed the District Court decision to the North Dakota Supreme Court. The Court

ruled that the Deed in Lieu severed all of our rights to our farm.

. We received a phone call that our house and trailer were gone, | called Ron. We explained to
Ron according to the Management Agreement, the Gord’s recognized our ownership of our
mobile home. A neighbor was going to get the trailer, but it was burned up before it was

retrieved for our farm. We filed charges and nothing was done by Fallon Kelly or Tonya Duffy.

. Despite repeated communication, Tonya Duffy did nothing until the statute of limitations had
expired.

. Appeal the North Dakota Supreme Court and District Courts

. Reopened our Bankruptcy to gain the proper Jurisdiction for our case to be heard.
. In May we went before Judge Hastings. (There is a recording)

. Appeal to the 8" Circuit on the ruling of Judge Hastings ruling, to the 8" Circuit of appeals



Conclusion
| hope that | have provided enough information to bring out the failures of the legal system in
our situation. There have been many things that the judges could have done to rule in our favor. |
have pointed out there has been theft of a deed, Lying on the stand, opportunities for the Gord’s to get
paid off, and when that was not taken by the Gord’s there was their assurances that the they would
work with us and the only thing that they desired was to get their money back, and then 30 days later
they try to sell our farm to Brian for a fast $500,000.00 profit. Our Confirmed plan is a contract that
bound all of us together and there should be no one or anything that should have superseded our
confirmed plan. In conversations with certain attorney’s they have concluded that nothing precluded
Beresford from doing what they did but it breached our contract with them, because the Settlement
Agreement has been ruled null and void according to state law. To be consistent with the intent of a
bankruptcy (To give a person a fresh start) there needs to be a law passed that gives assurances to both
Debtors and Creditors that this situation will never happen again. Now it could be said that given this
case, there will be a greater awareness of this type of interpretation between state law and Federal
Bankruptcy law, but were does this leave John and Lorie Finstad?
Given the deceit and conduct of Jim Gord and his attorneys and the way in which the laws between the
two government agencies have not served the intent of the Bankruptcy Code, | am suggesting the
following;
#1 Thought
1. That state law will be used as a guide to construct a mutual Bankruptcy plan.
2. That once a plan is signed by the court and the parties confirmed it is a contract.
3. That this contract will only be able to be changed, assigned or otherwise altered with the
consent of all the parties and the consent of the Bankruptcy Judge.
4. That this law be deemed Retroactive to January 2005.
5. If you look at the reason for a Retroactive law, it is explained as “a way for a legislature to
correct unforeseen consequences of a law or an interpretation of law that could be seen
as unforeseen at the time of the passage of a law”.

#2 Thought
" 1. When a Deed In Lieu is given it will be held in Escrow until there is an actual Foreclosure

In closing | want everyone to pay close attention to the Management
Agreement that was prepared by Mike Nelson who was Jim Gord’s
attorney. Line 15 and | quote “This Agreement may not be amended
except in writing, signed by all parties to this Agreement”. Why can’t
this be a Bankruptcy Standard to protect all parties of a Confirmed
Plan?
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~Communication from Mike Nelson to Lyle Thompson, Contract promised but never presented- November 30, 2009
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- Management Agreement between Jim and Wendy Gord and John Finstad- December 2, 2009

. Communication between Jim and John- There are many E-mails keeping Jim informed about what was going on from December 2009
to the time of the eviction that could be available if needed.

. Communication between Jim and John- March 17, 2011

. Communication between Jim and John- April 8, 2011
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- Communication between Warren Anderson and Jim Gord- September 21, 2012

Communication between Don Olson (Dakota Plains Coop Manager)- March 20, 2013
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- Communication to Jim Gord from Warren Anderson recalling the promises made to the Finstads and his intentions about the Finstad
Farm and being a man of his word- December 1, 2014

Communication between Wendy and Jim and Lorie Finstad, they never opened up the letter- February 16, 2015

Communication between Randy Panzer and Lorie Finstad- July 9, 2015

Binding Effect on Creditors and Debtors Publication- January 24, 2020

When state Law Conflicts with Federal Law- No date of publication

A full accounting of what the Finstad Farm would of rented for and the NDSU figures of Cow/Calf Profitability and the difference between
Federal Pasture fees and Private NDSU pasture rent difference calculations.
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Qctaber 25, 2005

Mr, David Johnson

Altorney at Law
P.0. Box 2189
Fargo, N[) 58108-2189

RE:  Beresford Bancorporation, Inc, / Finstad Lefter of Understanding Regarding
Setilement '

Dear Mr. Johnson:

This comespondence will briefly summarize . the seftiement agresment entered into

belwean-Beresford-Bancorporation-and-Lorie—andJohn Finstad—Ths purpose of this
Agreement Is fo bind the parties fo sefilement. [t is the parties intentions that tny office
prepare a delalled ssitlement agresment with supporiing documentation and forward the
same for all parties signatures. In the event that the detalled Ssttlement Agreement Is not
cxectited by any party, this Agreement shall contral,

Lorie and John Finstad appeared at the Bankruptey Court hearing on October 24, 2005, at
8:30 a.am., porsonally, Frank Farar, a representative of Beresford Bancorporation,
appeared telephonically. Frank Farrar and the Finstads listened o this Softlernant

Agresmont being read into the record and consented fo the same, The seltlement Is as
follows:

1. The Finstads will execute and deliver to Beresford Bancorporation a deed in Hieu
foreclosurs with anti-merger language to be recorded January 2, 2008;

2. If there be any judgments on the real estate, the Finstads will pay the same. In

addition, the Finstads will pay the mortgage/claim of Equity Trust Company
outstanding prior to December 1, 2005;
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3.

o

In consideration of the recelving a deed in iieu of foreclosure, the Finstads will be
granted an option to purchase the real estate from Beresford Bancorporation which
shall expire the eatlier of ;

a, Finstads' fallure to tender cash rent or perform other obligations pursuant to
the cash rent agreement and/or option agreement and fail to cure the same;
or

b, Dacernbaer 31, 2010,

Taentdler $25,000.00 fo Beresford Bancorporafion from the oatils proceeds check on
or hefore Navember 30, 2005, The catile proceeds check in the amount in excess
of $50,000.00 has various individuals or entities names on the check;

The aption fo purchase the real estate will require an Mareh 16, 2006, payment In
the amount of 36, 000 00 to keap the opfion in effect yearly and a like payment each

and svery Mareh. 160 theresfter up.to and including March 45,2010, Upon_the

Finstats pmwding notice of eXemxsmg thelr option to purchase the real estate, the
Finstads will have 90 days to close the purchase of the real estate;

Enter into a standard cash rent agreement requlring cash rent payment in the
amount of 8% of Beresiord Bancorporation's investment in the real estate. The
investment Is defined as the total amount due and owing by the Finstads to
Beresford Bancorporation less the $25,000.00 payment tess &ll optlon io purchase
payments recelved {in the amount of $6,000.00) x 8%;

The tent payment is dus and payable on or before March 15" of every year during

theterm-ofHthelease—Thelease-wiltbe-ab5yearleaseaxpiring December 31,2010,
and hon-renewable;

If thore Is a default of a lease payment or the optien payment, the Finstads will be
provided a 15 day notice of default with the 16 days perind of fime commencing
upon the date of the mailing of the notice of default. Beresford Bancorporation must
recelve alt funds that are in default before the 15 day period explres, All other
detaulis must also be cured in 15 days;

The deed In ley of foreclosure includes the tonveyance of all irrigation systems
upon the property. The Finstads will prepare a map demonstrating the location of
lhe irgation system. The irigation systems will be inspected by a recognized
Irrigation sales and malntenance company during the period of time Qetober 4
through October 18 of each and every year during the term of the agreemient, The
krrigatlon company shall render a report before October 30 of each year during the
term of this agreement and by December 30 during each {erm of this agreement the
ropairs recommended by the irrigation company must be preformed. [f not, such
shall constilute a default. The Finstads have agreed to pay for all of the repairs
recommended by irrigation company. The repalrs are based upon obsolesce, wear
and tear and damage by whatever sources including vandallsm, acls of God, and
equipment movement; EXIBITI ™"
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10, The Finstads have agreed to pay all real estate taxes and special assessments on
or before March 1°! of every year during the term of this agreement and before any
interest is assessed on the taxes. As to the taxes outstanding for the years 2003
and 2004, the Finstads shall pay the same by December 1, 2005, so that Farrar
may record his deed In this matter;

11, The Finstads must procure insurance on all Improvements to {he real estate
: disclosing Berosford Bancorporation as a loss/payes. Farrar will consent to al
insurance praceeds being utilized for repalr or replacement of damaged proporty on
the real estate as long as the Finstads pay for any shorifall (the difference betwaen
the cost to repair and the insurance proceeds for all property damaged and covered
by Insurance that the Finstads request to be repalred);

12.  The Finstads will make and pay for all necessary repalrs and perform maintenance
nocessary to maintaln the real estale and all bulidings and fixtures in its present

condilinn

~ 0CT-26-2006 WED 03:11 PH FAX NG, P 04
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13, Beresford Bancorporation will not recard the deed In lleu of foreclosure until January
2, 2006, Al the time of filing of the deed In lieu of foreclosure, all 2008, 2004 and
present, 2005 real estate taxas must be pald to the Ransom County Recorder's
office, From the date of this Agreement untll January 4, 2008, the Finstads are
granted the privilege of paying off thelr entire indshtedness outstanding o Beresford
Bancomporation as of the date of tendering said funds less a discount ealeulated to
be the difference hetween the atmount oulstanding as of the time of the payment {o
Beresford Bancorporation less $390,000,00 divided by 2 without taking inio
consideration the $25,000.00 payment {to be tondered by the Finstads fo Farar on

ot betore November 30, 20056);

14, In canslderation of the foregoing, Beresford Bancorporation agrees to reloase Its
inferest In the catlie chedk (as long as it recelvas $25,000,00 from the cattle check),
and agrecs fo release is securlty interest/financing statement in the Finstads'
personal prapetty excluding irmgation systems. The Finstads have also agreed to
exacute a fixture financing stafement verifying that Beresford Bancorporation has an
interest in the irrigation system and all buildings upon the real estate,

16, In further consideration and the terms and conditions of this seitlement agreement,
Beresford Bancorporation agrees that upon the Finstads' failure to timely pay any
tent, option fee, or falls to cure any other default of their agreements with Beresford
Bancomoralion resultihg in the Finstads' termination of any Interest in the real
estate, Beresford Bancomporation agrees o conduct an auction sale of the real
estate within 6 months of the date determined to be the last day thal the Finstads
have any Interest tn the roal estate. Beresford Bancorparation is enlitied to credit
bid the amount of ils investment in the real csiate outstanding at the auction sale
and retain all proceeds recelved from the auction sale, The real estate will not be
sold for an amount less than total amount of Beresford Bancorporation's
outstanding. The real estate g&)ﬂ(lbé Isilgildlp_?"'the auctioneer taking four bids and the

Page 3 of 21
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16,

real estate belng sold based upsh the highsst bid In excess of the amaunt
outstanding to Beresfard:

a.  The sale of 20 acre farmstead:

b, Sale of each quarter being sold separately; and

c. Al of the real estate sold as one unit.

Upon the termination of the Finstads’ Interest in the real estate by their fallure to
oure any default regarding the agreements referred to herewiftin, the Finstads may

remain ot tho farmstead as long as they do nol Inferfere with the Beresford
Rancorporation and Its assignees using the remaining farmiand for the price of

© $5600.00 per month payable the 1% day of each manth until 30 days after the auction

sale. The Finstads have agreed not to interfere with auction sale or Interfere with
Beresford Bancorporation's use of the real estate once the Finstads no longer have
an Interest in the real eslate and until 30 days-after the auction-sale—Sheuld-the

17,

7 TR0

Finstads violale this provision, the Finstads may he immediately evicted from the
toal estate;

The Finstads have agreed that they will consent to an entry of judgment of
foreclosure and hot objest to Beresford Bancorporation’s confinuation of any state
real esiate foreclosure procesdings In order for Beresford Bancorporation to clear
lille to the real estate, If the Finstads have performed the terms and conditions of
this Seltlement Agreement in a timely fashion, Beresford Bancorporation wil
release the Finstads of any personal obligations on thelr obligations outstanding to
Beresford Bancorporation; however, the parties stipulate and agreg that i order fo

18,

19,

20.

sontinue-the-foreclosyre-proceedings-fo-clearfitlethe-debt-will-stili-be-a-valid-and
enforceable debt upon the real estate.

At the time of the Finstads filing for bankruptoy relief, certain farm equiprment and
machinery of the Finstads was self help reposed by Beresford Bancorporation. The
equipment is located at a Steffes farm. The Finstads have agreed to pay Steffes his
storage eharges and costs involved with selzing the same and storing the same.

If Boresford Bancorporation is required to issue a 1090 ta the Finsiads, the amount
of the 1099 will be for the amount of the Finstads' Indebledness outstanding to
Beresford Bancorporation and not the value of the real estate.

If the Finstads fail o pay the mortgage/claim of Equity Trust Company prior to
Decernber 1,.2005, {paragraph 2), or fall to tender $25,000.00 to Beresford
Bancorporation before November 30, 2005, (paragraph 4), or pay the 2003 and
2004 resl oslale taxes due and owing the Ransom County Treasurer's office by
December 1, 2005, (paragraph 10), or and pay 2005 real estate taxes by January 1,
2006, Beresford Bancorporation may conslder this agreement in default, record the
deed in lieu of foreclosure, provide the Finstads with 15 days notice to cure alf
defaults and if they fail to do so, all of the Finstads Interests In the real estate will be
terminated including any OP@XI!Bppphqse the real estate and/or cash ront the

Page 4 of 21
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21,

22.

same, and Beresford Bancorporation may pursue the Finstads for any conversion of
coliateral/criminal proceedings. This Agreement shall nof be construed as an
admisslon by any party that the Finstads have been Involved in any conversion of
collgleral, but this Agreement simply allows Berestord Bancorporation to investigate
and pursue the same If stich facts and ciroumstances exists,

Infhe event that the Finstads sell any Beresford Bancorporation's collateral from ihe
date of this Agreement untll January 2, 2006, Beresford Bancorporation’s name
should appear on sald sheck and Beresford Bancorporation should be provided with
a copy of sald check evidenclng the proceeds received from the sale thereof.

On or about Qclober 31, 2005, Beresford Baneorporation will provide the Finstads
with & detafled list of all attorney’s fess Incurred to date, any accounting as o the
Finstads entire ohligations outstanding to Beresford Bancorporation,

Boresford Corporation’s motion for relisf from stay, motion for dismissal of the
Finstads' Chapter 12 Proceedings, and Mation to Raquirs the Finstads-to-Denosit

| RhA L T

all Gallle Proceeds will be continued untif the Seftlement Agreement and related
dooiments are executed by the partles,

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Brad A, Singlalr

BAS/sim

GG
.

/:PTED BY: .

i Y,

W Finstad

%)

sicordimadod.

P,

lorie Finstad

T

| o] (T, i

Frank Farrar, President of Beresford Bancorporation

EXIBITI "1"
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™ Jack G. Marcil
J Ronald H. McLean
Roger ], Minch
Retired:

. Steven K. Aakre ‘
Maureen Holman Armond G, Erickson
Brad A. Siaclair Lowell W. Lundberg

Office Manager

Jane L. Dynes
Beverley L. Adams Norman G. Tenneson
’rimoth); G. Richard LA-W FIRM (1898-1982)
Joseph A. Wetch, Jr. SINCE 1888 Chester J. Serkland
Berly D. Nelson (1909-1996)
Also Licensed in MN

‘“—. [ 5 '}?’fg?i
November 4, 2005 - R

Mr. David Johnson
Atiorney at Law
P.0O. Box 2188

Gary A. Rockne .

Earan ND-58108.24820
T Hl&v, Y VTV LTV
RE: Beresford Bancorporation, Inc. / John Finstad, Lorie Finstad

Dear Mr. Johnson: .

You requested information regarding my attorney’s fees [ have spent to date regarding the
Finstad matter. Enclosed please find a general summary of the attorney’s fees spent to
date. Until the Setttement Agreement is signed, | am fearful of providing a detailed
explanation of my services performed due to issues relating to attorney/client confidentiality
and the waiving of the same. '

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Enclosure
Cc:  Frank farrar

ATTORNEYS & COUNSELORS AT Law « A PROFESSIONAL CORPOR ATION
10 Roberts Street « P.O, Box 6017 * Fargo, North Dakota 58108-6017
Telephone (701) 232-8957 « Fax (701) 237-4049 + www.serklandlaw.com
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OFFICE OF COUNTY RECORDER
State of North Dakota)
County of Ransom)
{ hereby certify that the within instrument was filed in this
office for record on 01/20/2006 at 1.0:30 AM, and was duly
recorded as Document Nuimber 164056

™\

54056 Fee: $16.00 Pgiof3
Jite of North Dakota) a/ﬁ s —
vounty of Ransom) é _(7_/ =7
Yy

Recordad:01,/20/2006 At 10:30 AM peputy
J. Froemke, RecorderBy____ - .

?{:i:?n ta: SERKLAND LAW FIRM, 10 ROBERTS ST., $16.00 SERKLAND LAW FIRM 10 ROBERTS ST.
PO BOX 6017, FARGO ND 58108-6017 “ PO BOX 6017 FARGO ND 58108-6017

QMLAM-D-EED-MIH_ANI[:MEREEREBQ\{]_SJ_QN
THJS QUIT CLAIM DEED WITH ANTI-MERGER PROVISION INDENTURE, Made
this‘ﬂéay of December, 2005, between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad, husband and
wife, grantors, whether one or more, and Beresford Bancorporation, Inc., a corporation
organized under the laws of the State of South Dakota, grantee, whose post office

address is 724 Main, P.O. Box 919, Britton, South Dakota 57430,

For and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar and other good and valuable
consideration, grantors do hereby QUIT CLAIM WITH ANTI-MERGER PROVISION to )

N\ grantee, all of the following real property lying and being in the County of Ransom and

State of North Dakota and described as follows, to-wit;

The East ¥ of Section 9, ToWnship 134, Range 54, Ransom County North
Dakota. . :

AND

The South ¥ of the NW % of Section 15, Township 134, Range 54,
Ransom County, North Dakota.

This conveyance is not intended to merge the title conveyed by the Grantors to the

Grantee hereunder with the Grantee's mortgage liens held by the Grantee, and the




mortgage liens, will remain in full force and effect to protect and preserve the Grantee's
liens, in the event of the existence of inferior liens or encumbrances, and said mortgage
liens, shall remain in full force and effect until and unless satisfied through foreciosure or
satisfied in writing and recorded by the Grantee including:

A mortgage executed by the Grantors in favor of Beresford
Bancorporation, Inc., dated June 13, 2003 and recorded on
June 18, 2003 at 10:30 A.M. as document number 159760 in
the office of the Ransom County Recorder.

A mortgage executed by the Grantors in favor of Beresford
Bancorporation, Inc., dated March 20, 2004 and recorded on
March 25, 2004 at 9:00 A.M. as document number 161225 in
the office of the Ransom County Recorder.

A mortgage executed by the Grantors in favor of Beresford
Bancorporation, Inc., dated June 18, 2004 and recorded on
July 1, 2004 at 11:54 A.M. as document number 161771 in the
office of the Ransom County Recorder.

A mortgage executed by the Grantors in favor of Beresford
Bancorporation, inc., dated June 18, 2004 and recorded on

July 42004 =t t156"AM. a5 document number 161772 in the
office of the Ransom County Recorder.

This conveyanée by the Grantors to Grantee includes all of Grantors' rights, fitle
and interest in and to the real estate, together with any improvements thereon, all dower
and homestead rights, all rights of possession, and rental and equity of redemption and

all rights of first refusal.

| certify that the requirement for a report of the full consideration paid does not
apply because this deed is for one of the transactions exempted by subdivision (i) of

Subsection 6 of Section 11-18-02.2 N.D.C.C. as amended.
Date: MA’L Signed: !@ ‘ C d L"M

Grantee or Agent

164056 Fee: $16.00 Pg2of3
State of Narth Dakota)
County of Ransom)
Recorded:01/20/2006 At 10:30 AM
Susan 1. Froamke, Recordar By
Return to: SERKLAND LAW FIRM, 10 ROBERTS ST.,

PO BOX 6017, FARGO ND 58108-6017




WITNESS, The hand of the Grantor:

Jokﬁ/:( Finstad
Lorie?Finstad :

STATE OF NORTHDAKOTA )
)ss.
COUNTY OF CASS )

On this ‘% day of December, 2005, before me personally appeared JOHN

FINSTAND AND LORIE FINSTAD, known to me to be the person(s) who are described

in, and who executed the within and foregoing instrument, and severally acknowledged

that they executed the same. ﬁ j
pi /I

"No Pyblic
225 County, North Dakota
My Commission Expires:

Tr;;s insZ%Jm nt was drafted by: 4 y NG 'd’vgfc]ls -
(-0 - 4 1 My Com@iyqubhifs meg Mar 19 200
Bra (/Cx. s@iir# 0:42;34; %‘7%7 " Ny Corisor gl 1~ 7309

SERKLAND LAW FIRM DAr\qn{}f, "jmgoN
10 Roberts St. ciary Public
te of North Dakota
P.0. Box 6017 1 My Coﬂs‘j:ueoxE)'leveS Vo, 13, 2000

Fargo, ND 58108-6017
(701) 232-8957

;

h
\J
<
O
=
Z
(o]
=z

164056 Fee: $16.00 Pg3of3
State of North Dakota)
County of Ransom)
Recorded:01/20/2006 At 10:30 AM
Susan J. Froemke, Recorder By.
Return to: SERKLAND LAW FIRM, 10 ROBERTS ST.,
PO BOX 6017, FARGO ND 58108-6017




‘Case 18-07060 Doc 1-5 Filed 12/10/18 Entered 12/10/18 16:28:54 Desc Exhibit

Exhibit E - Contract Page L of 3

CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE

THIS AGREEMENT, mede as of December 30, 2005, b mdbetvmmBmﬁdemcwpmon‘
" k., (Seflor), and Job Finstad and Lagie Finsted, hisbed and e :
address is 14050 Hwy. 27,1152:05.%!1)5?355:5’ " Wi, (Parclases) whoes postoffes

mmmmmsaa,mmmof&mmwﬁmmm Ralease
d”fmdhm?rylo,zm, hrorody sells and sprecs to convey unto Purchaser, as}oh:m:gmdmt

tenents in common, by 8 Warrsnty Deed, sccompenied by eg sbatract evidensing good title in
smammmgwmmmmmwhmof&mm

tact of land lying s ;
- Iymg mmWMormmsmofmbmmdmm

The Exst Half (E3%) of Section Ni : |
Range Px‘ﬂy-ﬁx(i (54) on Nine (5), Township Ono Hundred Thirty-four (134)

AND

Complaint Exhibit “E"
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apud proper repair. Should ﬁmmﬁilmpaymyimmbepﬁdbym,immﬁng

meinfenence and other expsnditica to kesp e property in good and proper reptir md uul
mmﬁwmw&pﬁdw&ﬂﬂmﬂ sbaﬂhcﬁnﬁwﬂhpa)ﬁhhwﬂhmmmeg
at fhe ratn provided under this contract, 22 an additional etiount dus Seller undes this contrast

WMmemmwﬁ&eﬁmﬁsﬁmaﬁwmmmﬁmmm&ehhﬁn

Mm@mwmoxmsmmmmmmﬁmmmm

of Sciter, it being expresaly understood thn the petzonal credit
rig e ¥y edit end charsotor of the Purchasor i a

Pmch&méouhu&yasﬁgn,s&ov&mﬂddiv&hﬂanwaﬂoﬁm&'sﬁMﬁﬂam'

£ mterest
m@mmm_mm@wofmmmmmwmmwowmhm
whethet oral or written, now existmg of heresfier roede s esmpowers Seller to collect the rests as

' _ﬁleystnﬂbwmedmmdmmeiptibxﬁmme,md«ﬁrmmhoﬂmtenamtopaymhm

umxymwbsduegrwmd:myhmmbemmcdmwm&mmemoﬂhham
WW%MWM'MMWEWWMaH leases or

ﬁm%mmmmmmmmas&nuabmwmﬁmﬁmam

PROVIDED, HOWEVEE, this assigument shall not become ffective unless dofult ol be mada.
i o ffect i ‘
mmmm,mmcmmﬁfmwmmmomw? r‘j‘?l&u emade

mmm&wwmmmﬂpﬁmmﬁmmmm hecerngder

wgmwmﬁsmmmwmmmmwﬁ&mﬁoﬁfx
IRFIRIGS, OF to penfivtn any of e ovvenants, SETSMINCHIS, terms o copditions ewsn contsingd o
be by Purchaser kept or peiformsd, the Seller, may, at Salled's option, by written notice declxre this
confract canoslied and termisated, saul afl rights, 5t1emdimmwaoqmadﬂ:.mmb@byi’mvbﬂscr
shall thercmpon ceese zad teuminate, ard afl Improvements mede upon the premives, snd o]

wmmdupcﬁmﬁmofﬁidmﬁm,m&evﬁypmmm ithet
mmm &imhaseristohavapw don of sxid premises, Aitmg mwmmmmmmm unﬁg:;;
mﬁk&mmmpﬂm@,mwﬂ&b&m@mﬁmo{&nm
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extend, xun with the land, sod bind the beivs, personal :
regpetive patties hersto, RepraseDtatives, suceessors, O assigny of the

N TESTIMONY WHEREOF, The partics hegeto have executed this sgreanent the day-end yesr

next fo their signature,
; T s m
Dﬁhdﬂﬁsz_%myof %l X

BERESFORD BANCORPORATION, INC.

Iz :
Daicd e 2yt "

2ett
Dated this 7 _day of Deseraber, 2005.

G I\RERPI\Comtizzct fuxr Peod -

AﬁLYLE;MN = ,/V&’?L(([‘!Ibecﬁ (9.77% D == ‘fj' w(gé

Notary Pubic /
State ofGrNgdh Dakota % M%l;fwv
7 e -

=l Sl S R



MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE
THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE is entered into and
Hae
made as of January / { Z , 2006, by and between Beresford Bancorporation, Inc,, 600 Main
Street, P. 0. Box 1029, Briton, South Dakota 57430, hereinafter referred to as Reresford” and Jolm

Finstad and Lorie Finstad, 14060 Hwy. 27, Lisbon, North Dakota 58054, hereinafter referred to

as "Finstads”.

Beresford is the ownerin fee simple of certain real estate, hersinafierreferred to as the "Real

Estate", located in Ransom County, North Dakota, and more particularly described as follows:

Nz

Th
THRE ATt T O Tes

County, North Dakota;

The South Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 15, T ownship
134, Range 54, Ransom County, North Dakota.

Pursuant fo a Settlement Agreement entered info between the parties, the Finstads havebeen
granted an Option to Purchase the Real Estate and to lease the real estate until December 31, 2010,

unless terminated earlier as provided in the Ophon to Purchase or Lease or by operation of law,

The sole pmpose of this Memorandum isto provlde Notice of the Ophon fo Purchase and

Lease and the length of its term.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Memorandum of Lease and Option

“to Purchase to be executed the day and year first written above.

~ BERESFORD BANCORPORATION, INC.

v A St fud

FRANK FARRAR PRB'SHDENT

EXIBITI "1"
Page 7 of 21
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JOHN FINSTAD

LORIE FINSTAD

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )
)ss "

COUNTY OF MARSHALL )

Y

On this ‘O day of January, 2006, before me personally appeared Frank Farrar, of
Beresford Bancorporation, Inc., known to me to be the person who is described in and who executed
the within.and.foregoing instrument on behalf of the carporation and acknowledged that he had

authority to do so,

NOTARY FUBLIC

(SE A L) Marshall County, South Dakota
P My commission expires;
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )
)ss
COUNTY OF RANSOM )
On this day of January, 2006, before me personally appeared John Finstad and Lorie

Finstad, known fo me 10 the persons who are described i and wio executed the withinand
foregoing instrument and severally acknowiedged they execnted the same.

NOTARY PUBLIC
(SEAL) Ransom County, North Dakota
My conunission expires:

_GA\25299\Memorandum of Lease and Option to Purchasewpd

2
EXIBITI "1"
Page 8 of 21
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.

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AND OPTION TO PURCHASE is enitered juto and

mmade as of Tanuary B/, 2006, by and between Beresford Bancorpoxation, Inc, 600 Main

Stzeet, P. 0. Box 1028, Brifon, Gouth Dakota 57430, heteinafierreforred o 25 "Berosford” and Solin

Finstad end Lorie Finstad, 14060 Hwy. 27, Lisbon, Nord Dekota 53054, hereinafier refecred to

as "Finstads",
Beresford is fhe owner in fea simple of certatnrenl estate, herelnafierveferred to 83 the "Real

Bstate®, loonted mRaﬁsom County, Norih Dakota, 2nd soore particularly Qeseribed as follows;

'I‘hs Fast Half of Section 9, Townshlp 134, Range 54, Ransom

County, North Dakote;

The -Sowth Tl of the Noxthwest Querter of Seotion 15, Townskip .
134, Range 54, Ransom County, Noxth Dlota.

Pursuant o a Settlernent Ag:eament entered mtobctwmtheparﬁes, the Binstads have bem
granted an Optlon to ‘Puzchase t'ae Real Bstate and to lease theréal estats wufil December 31,‘2010.,

wnless termmated enrlier as pxonﬁedm the Option to Purchase ox Lease or by operation of law:

he he sole 'pquose oF this Momoxandum is to provide Notlce of the Option to” Purchasleaﬂd'- e I

Lease and the langth oFits termn.
IN WITNESS WB“ERBOF, fheparties have cansed this Memorandum of Lease and Option

{0 Purchase to be executed the day and year first written above,
BERESFORD BANCORPORATION, INC.

%(%gs{mmf

EXIBITI "1" AN, DGR
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e
i

) —
JOEN FINSTAD
LORIE BINSTAD
STATB QF SOUTH DAXKOTA. ' g
S8
COUNTY OF MARSHALL )

On this ’Bg%d{y of January, 2006, before me petsonally appeared Frank Harear, of
Boresford Bancorporation, Ine., knovmto me 1o be the person who is deseribed in and who execnted
fhe within and forogoing instrument on behalf of the corporation and acknowledged that he had

authorify, to do so. '

' foregoing instrament and severally achowlc&ged 8y exeouted the samer

NOTARY PUBLICY
Mershall County, Soufa Dakota
My commission expires: /A -A- 26 1O

smtgbmamzmxom )
Ty, e . )SS
COUNTY OF RANSOM )

On this day of Tanusty, 2006, beforemepexsonaﬂy appesrad John Finstad and Lone
Finstad, known fo me to the persons Who ate deseribed in and who executed the vnthin and

NOTARY PUBLIC
(SEAL) ) Reansomn County, North Dakota
My corumission expires:

G\25299\Memarandum of Lease and Option ke Purchrscivpd

R “—.__—' EXIBITI ll1ll
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Frank L. FARRAR

Attornay it Law

600 MAIN STREET
YO BOX 1029
BRITTON, SOUTH DAKOTA 57430
TELEPRONE (505) 448-2643

Auguet 3, 2006

Shoyenne Valley Grazing Association
P.0.Box 63
MeLeod, ND 58057

Denr Grazing Association:

Please bo adyised that Beresford Bancorporation, & bank holding company, loaned money ta
John Finstad. John Finstad took hantuipicy aud in the bankruptey agreement, Beresford
Bancotporation topk the title to the land with an option back to My, Finstad thet he has a right to
exercise. The transfer of the praperty was basically for the purpose of collateralizing the

e G

property in the event fhat Mr, Finstad does not rxercise ihe option, M. Finstad also hasthe
lensing right to the aud ard will continue te &) so until he viglates any of the abiove agreements.

Therefore it is my belie! that this s not a change of ownership, but a financing vehicle to protest
the company from long foreclosutes in the event that Mr, Finstad does not mest his obligations.

Therefore T do not hulisve that theve has beer a change of ownerchip as you aliege aud you might
possibly be violating Mr, Finstad's rights if you suspend an this basis,

You mey have some other basis to do so, but this might not b the tight one legally. IT'would
suggest that you contact you legal and banking associstes before you make this decision.

Please advise if you need any further inforr.iation and what your intentions are. Thank you for
your consideration,

Most Sincercly, % JWL%[? M MW .,
Tnd A g | Ey Lt it o2 T
ank L. Famar Qtedton W/ A&/ M é@yW

BLF/bjh M 3 ” M
a Z% vy A

A k. 5o '

Fd
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Jack G, Maréil Gary A, Rockne

Ronald H. McLean Office Manager
Roger J. Minch
Maureen Holman Retired:

Brad A. Sinclair
lane L. Dynes
Beverley L, Adams
Timothy G. Richari
Joseph A, Weich, Ir,

Berly D, Nelson

Armond G. Erickson
Lowell W, Lundberg

Norman G. Tenneson
/1202 10991
{1898-1282)

Chester J, Serkland
{1909-1996)

Also Licensed in MN |

October 5, 2006

. Mr. David Jehnson —

Attorney at Law

P.O. Box 2189
Fargo, ND 58108-2189

RE: Beresford Bancorporation, Inc. / John Finstad, | orie Finstad

Dear Mr. Johnson;

Pursuant to our numerous conversations, the Finstads are fighting the Cattle Association’s
attempt to strip the Finstads of their grazing rights to the various Government property.
The Grazing Association contends that the Finstads are not the owners of the real estate
and the grazing rights transfer to the owner. In this case, if Beresford Bancerporation is

S ¢ PO £ 41~ ~e i 4 . 1 H 1 ¥
e owner of the real estate, the grazing rights may be lost,

FSA has also informed John Finstad that he incorrectly filled out FSA documentation
demonstrating that he is the owner of the real estate, not a tenant. Supposedly, as an
owner of the real estate and actively farming the real estate, the owner is entitled to more

FSA benefits then a tenant,

Pursuant to our conversations, John Finstad has represented that Clayton Ruck has
agreed to finance Finstad’s purchase fo the real estate from Beresford Bancorporation and
a closing will ocour in November, 2008, Finstad's option to purchase the real estate

without paying a subsequent renewal fee expires March 14, 2007. The option to purchase
further provides that Closing is to occur within 90 days after the date of the Finstads’ notice
of their exercise of their option to purchase the reai esiate. Paragraph 2.15 provides that
if the Finstads fail to exercise their option to purchase after providing notice to Beresford
Bancorporation

forfeited.

I aaintn ahail kA

o 1 PR S X I S U 4s miipmia o 4l A
oM, an O e rinstaas options to puitnase wie rear estate shall be deem

You are hereby notified that should John Finstad provide Beresford Bancorporation with a
notice of his intention to exercise his option to purchase the deeded real estate and should

fa¥aVa)l

ciosing not oceur, by no fauit of Beresford Bancorporation by December 31, 2008,
Beresford Bancorporation waives any forfeiture provision contained in the option to

ool bl .  oee nmt:nn 4 el i raed nn"'ntt‘\

R AT med Dimadada? ~ o a i
puithase uie feai eswaie and rinstads UpLion 10 puicnase ine real esta N

€ sna
ATTORNEYS & COUNSELORS AT LAW + A PROFESSIONAL Conpoaggmp
10 Roberts Street » P.O. Box 6017 » Fargo, North Dakota 581
Telephone (701) 232-8957 + Fax (701) 237-4049 - www.serklandlaw.com

iaint Exhibit *D"
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Octaber 5, 2006
Page 2

full force and effect until March 14, 2007. On or before March 15, 2007, and should the
Finstads have not purchased the property from Beresford Bancorporation, the Finstads

must tender to Beresford Bancorporation and Beresford Bancorporation must receive by

March 15, 2007, $6,000.00 tc extend the option to purchase the real estate from March 15,

2007, to March 15, 2008.
Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Cc:  Frank Farrar

The representations and statements contained in this correspondence have been agreed
y Frank Farrar, the president of Beresford Bancorporation.

0]
-1

Bv: Frank Farrar
its; President

0413
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LAW OFFICES OF

DON B. EPPLER P.CL BOX 51)

EPPLER & LEADBETTER TELEPHONE: (701 683-4137

JEFFREY K. LEADBETTER FAX: 701-683-5511
TITLE BUILDING

LISBON. N. DAK. 58054-0511

October 31, 2006

Shevenne Valley Grazing Association
P.0. Bax 63 :
MclLeod, ND 58057

ATTN: Janna Leedahl

Dear Janna:

Atyourrequesttamproviding-a-writtenopinion-concerning-the-isste-o

grazing rights.

1. Yimeline of Events. A Settlement Agreement and Release was executed by
the Finstads and Beresford Bancorporation on January 10, 2006. This document spells
out the full agreement between the parties, and provides for the deed in lieu of
foreclosure to the Bank. Although the deed was signed on 12/30/05, it was evidentally
not delivered until the Settlement Agreement was signed, as it was not recorded until
1/20/06. The Agreement provides that the Finstads are to retain full control of the land
despite the deed, as they retained the right to rent the land themselves or to sublet it.
The Finstads were also given an "Option" to repurchase the land, but the option price is
the same as the indebtedness to the Bank, plus interest and legal fees. it is my opinion
that the Settlement Agreement evidences that the Finstads retained control of their land
at all times.

2. Ownership. At first glance, it would appear that the Finstads did transfer
ownership of their land, as they signed a Quit Claim Deed which was recorded, and
they have an Option to repurchase the land. After reviewing the Settlement Agreement
and discussing it with Attorney Brad Sinclair, who drafted it for the Bank, it is my opinion
that ownership did not actually transfer, as the Quit Claim Deed is merely protection for
the Bank in the event the Finstads default on the terms of the Agreement. The
Agreement provides for rental and option payments by the Finstads, but these
payments are to be applied against his indebtedness rather than treated as rent.
Interest continues to accrue on his full indebtedness at 8%, which indicates that the
Bank gave the Finstads nothing for the Quit Claim Deed. Finally, if the Finstads default
on the terms of the Agreement, the Bank cannot sell the property to whomever it

Complaint Exhibit "B"
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Exhibit B - Eppler Letter Page 2 of 2

Sheyenne Valley Grazing Association
October 31, 2006
Page Two

wishes, as it could if it really owned the land. The Bank must sell the land at public
auction, the Finstads have control over how it is sold, and all proceeds in excess of the
indebtedness owing to the Bank are to be paid over to the Finstads. Therefore,
because the Bank did not receive any rights of ownership, or pay anything for the Quit
Claim Deed, it is my opinion that ownership has not actually transferred from the
Finstads to the Bank.

3. Management. Since the Finstads did not relinquish control or transfer
ownership of their property, | do not believe that they violated the Rules of Management
as set out in the Agreement between SVGA and USDA Forest Service.

4. Vehicle For Financing. It is my opinion that the Quit Claim Deed to the Bank
is merely an additional form of protection for the Bank, and not an actual transfer of
ownership. In that regard, it could be viewed as a vehicle for financing, or financial

protection—Forexample;if the Finstads decided o convert their bankrupticy from a
Chapter 12 to a Chapter 7, the Bank would not have to deal with a Bankruptcy Trustee
or wait for a Court Order to sell the land, as it already has the Quit Claim Deed and
Settlement Agreement. The Bank's attorney, who drafted these documents, states that
he did not intend ownership to change, but this was his new and inventive way to best
protect the Bank (and ensure that it would be paid in full).

| believe that this letter addresses all of the Board's questions. Lyle Thomason has

requested a copy of this letter, which | will provide after the Board reviews it and
consents. '

Very truly yours,

EPPLER & LEADBETTER

\Don B Eppter. 7 7

DBE:vnh
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Yaur fife. Your fevf 110

:}, A ﬁmﬂ'g S
Miariied R, Divisfed 1914~ 1587 .4” Jage 20, 2008
ousne ¥, Breiiing*
Ervtt A, Sy
Willlsm J, Brudvik®
1o, besiarets OF Coursed
Susn L Bl
e M. David . Johnson
Rekent 6. eyt Attoraely at Lo
e B e P.0, Boz 2188
o V. Kallr Fargo, ND 58108-2189
Jarthall W, MeCulitgh
Chuisrophr M. bicStane® ) i i
s b Re:  Jobu & Lorie Finsted
P D, Nevgebaupr™
ol Rasenvslsin Deer M. Jobnson:
Jehn'T, Sheuidnyt
SRLK. Stemn Aslmmmedwhenwe spoke by telephone, 1represent Jim andchdyGorﬂ The
iw e Fistads arethde viTand-Moe-Gord-on- -3 MOTigAse
Py N debt of $350,000" sme&'b;r two parcels of frmland (alfil.nnga zecord title is held
. , in M. Pazrar's compeny), eod the seoond being 8 debt of §150,0007, which may be
Py & Butht, PLS wnsecured. Both debts invelve logns made to John and Lerie Finstad gfter they Sled
) gificy Agmintirate - for Chapter 12 baxloruptoy protection, xod bof loans wers tads to John and Leste
—— Fiosiad withont auy disclosre to Jim 20d Wendy Gord that the Finstads were in
e bapkroptey, (TheGords were not eves infwmed that the Fingtads didmthnvemﬁ
owaership of the land.)

¥ appears ﬁ:aﬁudgeﬂﬂimmtmadamﬁmﬁmsordlomwema&eﬁom
Finstads after the Chapter 12 barkrupicy fiing, noris the Bapkpky Comt awero of
-those loans today, What that omisgion may meas in the context of 3 Chapter 12 .
bunkruptey procasding, I do notknow, A bankraptey lewyer will have to be consulted
by the Gexds to answer that question, aud fnd out 'what can or shovld be done sbowt
i Ithwgiﬂthﬂdebmmhahmh@taymgmhmpmmmgh&dw get the
Bakruptey Coud's paomission to bomow money and pledge assets, 'but s T
mmucmd,l&mmtabanlm_myl&wex

I my information is cooxact, Jobn and Lore Finstad have now cogvineed spofher
private party (the Clemensons) to loan them money, offering up &5 security & sscond
morigags position (second to the Gords) on the two priesls of Brmisnd referenced
above, 1t appears the Finstads' intent is to (1) pay Frenk Farrars compeny $51,000%,

{2} keep t,‘i.s,,‘ch.el?mstadaka@) part of the proceeds fo:ﬁxeircwnus:, and (3) pay the
Gords $125,000%, T am guessing the Clemenson loaxt is iz the $200,000 rwage, but
that is only a gusss,

Alesuss Anancist BUMInG « 501 13th Ave, Saxt = B Box A58 + West Farga, ND 83078-D488 » Prone; 701.282.5249 « FAXE 707,Z82.0208 « v ohtadiaw.com
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Jack G. Marcll

Ronald H, Mclean
Roger 1, Mincht
Maureen Holman
Brad A. Sinclair

Jane L. Dynes
Timothy G. Richerd
Joseph A, Wetch, Ir.
Berly D, Nelson
Nicholas D. Thornton
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August 8, 2008

AT T Al BFBJEL

Gary A. Rockne
Office Manager
Retired;

Armond G. Brickson
Lowell W. Lundberg
Norman G. Tenneson
{1898-1982)

Chester J. Serkiand
{1909-1996)

FAX — 320-589-4154

Mr. Warren Anderson
Attorney at Law

P.0. Box 527

Morris, MN 56267

.

RE: Farrar / John Finstad

Dear Mr. Anderson:

Pursuant to my telephone conference with John Finstad, he has requeéted that |

fax to you the following documents:

1. Settlement Agresment entered info between Beresford Bancorporation

and John Finstad;

2. Information regarding payoff; and

3 in addition to the payoff balance, there is approximately $60,461.82
outstanding to our office for additional atiorney’s fees and cosfs incurred
since Farrar's calculation of the balance outstanding July 31, 2008,

In essence, because of John Finstad's alleged conversion of Beresford's caitle
and other personal property, John Finstad executed the Settlement Agreement in
which the real estate was conveyed to Reresford Bancorporation and Beresford
Bancorporation in turn aliowed John Finstad the option to rent the property for b
years, option to purchase the property for 5 years if no defaults existed, and if
defaults existed and that the defaults are not cured, Beresford Bancorporation
was authorized to conduct an auction sale of the properly, receive sufficient
funds from the auction sale to pay the debt outstanding to Beresford
Bancorporation in full, and any surplus proceeds were to be remitted to Finstad.

Complaint Exhibit "H"
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IUL/07/2008/M0N 11:02 AM  SERKLAND LAW FIRM FAX No, 701 298 8543 P 003
" TUN/20/2000/FR1 0124 P  OENSTAD TWICHELL Law FAY Ko, 700 282 0825 P, 0037003
;o
M. David L. Johinson . . !

June 20, 2008
Pege2

From the way it looks to me, the intent of Se Finstads sad the Clamensons ix to apply the $125,000
peyment ¥ the Gords on the morfzage debt owed to the Gords, in order to rednce the muennt
outstanding on e Gord mortgage (thereby giving the Clemensons' second position mars of s equity
position in the process). This intent, of courss, leaves the Qords' ofhier dabt kigh and dty.

Plessebs advised thatthe Gords will ot acospt the $125,000 payment cordermplated by the Finstads snd
the Clemensons 1 be paid 1o the Gords. It seems obvious fhat the Barkeiptey Conrt will have o sart
out (X) what happened betwesn the Gords sid the Finstads, and (2) what can heppen now, involying the
Clemensons, If any Benlauptey Court approval {s needed by the Gords (end my Inmeh is fhat 418), then
the Gords have po interest in doing anything now that may have to be yndone lster, .

Sincerely yours,
OBNSTAD TWICHELL, P.C.

a— Cm e
Aod Y 5
Rl
——
.
1l

Michael D, Nelson

MIIN3AE -
co vis e-mail gnd fax only; Mz. Bob Schaefer, Parslegsl '
— e4aail: bschaefur@stefimsontaw. com
~FAX: 236-6897
' M= Brad A, Sinclair
—ematl: beinceir@serklamdlaw.com
wEAXK: 237-4048




- B - —Jor R Braidke

Phone: 701.237.6983 | Fax: 701.476.7676 jbrakke@voseliaw.com

t August 13,2008 .
km@gwg
L AUG 14 2008

= David L. Johnson T

l Attorney at Law L3 (U ——
| P.O.Box 2189

Fargo, ND 58108-2189

RE; John N, & Lorie Finstad Bankruptcy/Jim and Wendy Gord
Bankruptey No. 05-31470
Our File No. 37180.08000

Dear Mx. Johnson:

A As I indicated when we spoke on Apgust 13% 1 represent James and Wendy Gord with
respect to their claims against John and Lorie Finstad. The Finstads obtained loans from the

- Gords post-petition. The loans were never approved by the United States Bahkruptcy Court

~ for the District of North Dakota. As a consequence, we have agreed that any discharge
entered in the Finstad bankruptcy case will have no fmpact on the claims of the Gords against

! the Finstads. For this reason, the Gords will not take any action to oppose the Finstads’
request for a discharge in their bankruptey case.

Rl Vﬁy troly yours,

R Brakke

i JRB:1dt
co:  Michael Nelson
676364.1

218 NP Avenue | P.O. Box 1389 | Fargo, ND 58107-1389 | mww ~vagellaw.com } Ofltces in Farge, Bismarck, and hoorhead
ii - -Including the former GumhusEaw Firm cogips -

F1-00618



- QOctober 8, 2008

iy, Frank Farrar
P.O. Box 836
Brition, SD 57430

—Mr-JonBrakke

Attorney at Law

P.0O. Box 1389

Fargo, ND B5B107

RE: Berssford Bancorporation f John end Lerie Finstad

Geantlemen:

Enclosed please find my redrafied Assignment Agreement. Please review the same
and contact my office regerding guesfions you may have.

Enclosed please find my working copy which demoneirsies the changes or areas that |
nave inseriad language into the Assignment Agresment. 3

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Brad A. Sinciair

BAS/s
erclosures



UIT CLAIM DEED

THIS INDENTURE made this _’F’zﬁ'} day of November, 2008, between Beresford
Bancorporation, 600 Main Street, P. O. Box 1029, Britfon, SD 57430-1029, Grantor, and
James Gord and Wendy Gord, husband and wife, 4450 Bast Sandwich Road, Sandwich,

1L 60548, collectively Grantee.

Page 1 of 3

WITNESSETH that Grantor for good and valusble consideration, the sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, does SELL, REMISE, RELEASE, AND GRANT AND 2 ©
QUIT CLATM to Grantee, their successors and assigns forever, all of Grantor’s right, fitle, © M
interest, claim or demand in and to the following tract or parce! of land lying and being i & 2
the County of Ransom, State of North Dakota, and described as follows, fo-wif: & < F
; z |
E % of Section 9, and the 8 % of the NW % Section 15, Township 134, E‘;_ B E‘: % «
Range 54 G ZEER
- MY
» THE ABOVE LEGAL DESCRIPTION WAS TAKEN FROM A PREVIOUSLY 9 2ER G35
. RECORDEDDOCUMENT. - A NE
|
together with all improvemens, hereditaments, appurtenances, and easements related § o8n s
thereto. Setsast
, S882as’
This conveyance does not constitute a merger of interest with respect to the rights of
James Gord and Wendy Gord under the following real estate mortgages:
a. A real estate mortgage between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad and Grantes
of date June 7, 2006, filed for record with the Ransom County, North Dakota
County Recorder on September 26, 2006 at 3:25 pan., as Document No.
164915.
b.  Areal estate mortgage between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad and Beresford
Bank Corporation of date Tune 13, 2003, filed for record with the Ransom
County, North Dakota County Recorder on June 18, 2003 at 10:30 a.m., as
Document No. 159760, the rights of Beresford Bank Corporation under said
mortgage have been as signed to Grantee,
&, A real estate mortgage between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad and Beresford
Bank Corporation of date March 20, 2004, filed for record with the Ransom
County, North Dakota County Recorder on March 25, 2004 at 9:00 a.m., as
Document No. 161225, the rights of Beresford Bank Corporation under said
mortgage have been as signed to Grantes.
d  Areal estatemortgage between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad and B eresford
Bank Corporation of date June 18, 2004, filed for record with the Ransom
County, North Dakota County Recorder on July 1, 2004 at 11:56 a.m., as
' Quiet Title Action
EXHIBIT "C"




=7

Document No. 161772, the rights of Beresford Bank Corporation under said

mortgage have been as signed fo Grantee.
6.  Atesl estate mortgage between John Finstad and Lorie Finstad and Beresford

Bank Corporation of date June 18, 2004, fled for record with the Ransom .

County, North Dakota County Recorder on July 1, 2004 at 11:54 am., as
Document No. 161771, the rights of Berssford Bauk Corporation under said

morigage have been as signed to Grante.

Grantee reserves all rights o proceed with forecloswre of said mortgage as against
junior Henholders, mortgagors, encimbrances, eic. $0 as to obtain clear title to the above-

described property.
* IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Grantor hias executed this deed on the day and -

" year first above written.

BERESFORD BANCORPORATION

By::"’fz'*‘;%fé/ / i\ /jftﬁ-‘v’ifi‘?
Its: LM Giinity .

168480 Fee: $16,00 Pg2of3
State of North Dakots }

County of Ransom }

Recorded: 127272008 At 4:30 PM

Susan J Froemks, Recorder By,

Return To: OCHNSTAD TWICTHELL PO BOX 458

WEST FARGO, ND 58078
Quiet Title Action
EXHIBIT "C"
Page20f3 -




168480 Fee: $16.00 Pg3of3
State of North Dakota )

County of Ransom }

Recorded: 12/2/2008 At 4:30 PM

B Susan J Froemke, Recorder By
f‘ STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) Return To: OHNSH'AD TWICHELL PO BOX 458
) ss. WEST FARGO, ND 58078

COUNTY OF_Spilth Dadefw )

_ Novernber
The foregoing insirument was acknowledged before me thisAS_day of Semerabes;

F]

2008, by E_f'zm k farvar the C/fl&z'm%wv of Beresford Bancorporation, a
corporation,-on behalf of the corporation,

S Brands, }éég(fmc@

| Notary Public , |
(SEAL) ey My Commission expies . { 2= 2-2010 -

The uncriomed certifies that in accord with NDCC § 11-18-02.2(6)(1) as 2 consequence
of the transfer of the above described property occurring by Deed, no reportor statement of
full consideration need be filed pursuant to NDCC § 11-18-02.2(1)(2), (b) and/or (c).

Duiod: Deoolse. L 2008, =2 [foeefd TS 2 fortde
Gramtesor-Authorized Agent
This Instrument was Drafted by: Tax Statements for the Real Property described
- in this instrument should be sent to:

Jon R. Brakke

Vogel Law Tames Gord and Wendy Gord

P.0. Box 1382 4450 Bast Sandwich Road

218 NP Avenue Sandwich, IL 60548

Fargo, ND 58107-1389

Delinguent taxen and speciel pssessments or instriiments

685543.1 ‘ g;ﬁeciﬁ}; assg:ysrg;mm p2id anc}n%m\;sms Ewgagpé_?i‘
' OFFICE OF COUNTY RECORDER | Crnm2) A7V —
. State of North bakota ) ¥ ‘ B Y o
- County of Ransom ) epury, Ransom Cogaty Auditor
. 1 hereby certify thet the within instrument was filed = s Current taxes Or current spacial essessmends or ime

siehymerts of special gssessments nYe nDpuid

. office for record on 12/ 2/2008 st 4:3C PH, and was duly S ONnt oS —

: recorded as Document Number 168480

i M%@/@ﬂw AU recorser ¢ —
E ex ‘ t-l -
- By t,-.f“} . ... Deputy ﬁ M ,;\\\“ ‘ ‘Vl(;l"""

A z - s m e T T >
. Fesf\{'76:00 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PO BOX 458 Se s

WEST FARGO, ND 58078 Sl % e

] P B

; TCLe L@ ol
:, ERX S
. i | P
. 4 ! ” v et .
:?& XX,\ %(G(J ,"‘l‘r AR s
YN Fligpages * Quiet Title Action

ot (Shaglod Muichial Y
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December 2, 2008

#ir. Jon Brakke
Attorney al Law
P.O. Box 1389
Fargo, ND 58107

gl serporation Aseignment of all of ifs Rights and Infersst in
Loen Decumentafion and Resl Estete With John Finstad and Lorie Finstad -
to the Sords ’ .

Dear Mr. Braklke:

‘Puxsuan‘& to our telephone conferences of earlier today, you have requeésted my
suggested changes fo the Assignment Agresmsnt and a copy of the Assignment
Agreemsnt that was circulated to Frank Farrar last night after 5:15 p.m., in which he did
not sign because the Assignment Agreement did not accurately reﬁe-ct the agresment
between Beresford Bancorporation and the Finstads. Beresford Bancorporation desires
that the Assignment Agreement accuraiely poriray the sgresment betwsen Beresford
Bancorporation and the Finstads. Please contact my office regarding the accepiability
of the proposed redrafted of the agreement.

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Brad A, Sinclair
BASklm

eiGiosure

Cc:  Frank Famer
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ASSIGHMENT AGREEMENTE

1.1 Pursuant to a Setilement Ag%s&msﬁ{ and Release Agreement dated Januvary
10, 2006, executed by Jolm Finstad and Lorie Finstad (hereinafier “Debtors”™), Exhibit K, -
the Debtors acknowledged they are obligated to Beresford Bancorporation, Inc,
(hereinafter “Beresford™”) pursuant to the terms of &ye following promissory n@fes:

Date of Mote A Original Principal Balance

June 13, 2003 $227,250.00 -
March 20, 2004 . § 51,000.00-
4 June 18, 2604 $ 15,300.0C
D. June 18, 20064 $ 45,900.00

oW p

The shove-refereneed promissory notes eve hersinafter collectively refemed to as the

“Notes®, trus znd accurste copies of the Notes are annexed herett 2 Exhibits A through
D,

12  To collsterslize the mdebtedness due o Beresford on the Notes, the
.E@‘biofs granted Beresford the following morigages:

A. A WMortgage dated Jume 13, 2803 in the following described real property
located in Ransom County, State of North Daketa: B ¥z of Section 9, and
e 8 ¥ of the N'W % Seciion Y5, Township 134, Range 54. Said Mortgage
was duly Gled with the Rausom County, Nezth Dakofa Recorder on the 187
day of Jume, 2003 at 10:30 am. a8 document number 159760, Said
Mortgage secures the obligations due on the Jeme 13, 2003 Promissery
Note payable in the original amount of $227,250:00, a true and accurate
copy of said Morigage is annexed hiereio a8 Exhibit B,

B. A Mortgage daied March 20, 2004 in the Toliowing described veal property
located in Ransom County, State of North Dakota: East 2 (E ¥2) of Section
Nine (§), Township 134 North, Renge 54 West; and S Y% of the NW ¥
Section 15, Township 134, Range 54. Said Mortgage was duly filed with
the Ransom County, North Diakota Recorder on the 25" day of March, 2004
#t 0:00 am. a5 document number 161225, Said Morigege secures the
obligations due on the March 20, 2004 Promissory Note eriginally payable



December 2, 2008

#ir. Jon Bralkke
Atlorney at Law
P.O. Box 1589
Fargo, ND 58107

RE: Beresford Bancorporation Assignment of all of ite Rights and Inferest In

i oan Documenietion and Resl Estete With: Johr Finstad and Leofie Finstad
to the Gords ’

Dear Mr. Bralkike:

Pursuant 1o our felephone confersnces of earlier today, you have requested my
suggested changes fo the Assignment Agresmsnt and & copy of the Assignment
Agreement that was circulated to Frank Farrar last night after 5:15 p.m., in which he did
not sion becauss the Assignment Agreement did not accurately reflect the agreament
between Beresford Bancorporation and the Finstads. Beresford Bancorporation desires
that the Assignment Agreement accuraiely poriray the agreement between Beresford
Bancorporation and the Finstads. Please contact my cffice regarding the accepiabiiity
ef the propesed redrafted of the agresment.

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAW FIRM

Brsd A, Sinclair

BASHslm
efsciosure
Cc:  Frank Farrar
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“Security Agreements”. Subsequent to the execution of the Seitlement and Release
Agreement, the Finstads tendered significant sums of money to Beresford to reduce their
obligation outstanding to Beresford and in cénsié@mﬁon thereof, Beresford released its
security interest in the debtor’s various personal property except irrigators. Beresford’s
only interest in the Finstads® real and personal property is the real estete described
herewithin pursuant to the real estate mortgages and asserting a security mterest in the
irrigators.

1.4 Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement entered into between Beresford and

the Debtors, Beresford consolidated the Debtors’ obligations under the promissory notes

'Lv,._.,

S

i
|
A

as feferred to herewithin and as of October 17, 2008, there was due and owing on the
combined promissory notes the following amounts: principal bslance of $57,813.66,
accrued interest of $2,692.15, interest rate at thé annual rate of 8%, and a fotal balance
due and owing of $60,505.81.

1.5  In addition, Beresford entered into a loan transaction with the Debtors on or
about January 12, 2007, in the principal amount of $5,555.00. The MNote was unsecured.
As of November 21, 2608, there was due and owing under said January 12, 2007,
Promissory Note, principal balance of $3,333.80, accrued imterest of $569.17, and interest
rate of 20%, for a total balance outstanding in the amount of $3,932.97. The Jenuary 12,

©

2007, Promissory Note is unsecured,

16 TUnder the terms of the Settlement Agreement, BExhibit K, the Debtors

5 % ok T Js T 5 o oed Bewr 1..1‘: 2 £ S o e PN
conveyed the Res! Proparty © Beresford by & desd in Beu of foreclosure in non-merger



TR
s

in the principal amount of $51,000.00, 2 true and accurate Copy of said
Mortgage is annexed hereto as Exhibit F;

A Mortgage dated June 18, 2004 in the following described real property
located in Ransom County, State of North Dakota: Bast ¥ (E Y4 of Section
Nire (9), Township 134 North, Renge 54 West; and S %2 of the NW %
Section 15, Township 134, Range 54. Said Mortgage was duly filed with
the Ransom County, North Dakota Recorder on the 1% day of July, 2004 at
11:56 am. as document number 161772. Said Mortgage secwres the
obligations due on the Jume 18, 2004 Promissory Note payable i fhe
criginal principal smount of $15,300.00, & true and sccurate copy of said
Mortgage is annexed hereto as Exhibit G; and '

€3

D. A Mortgage dated June 18, 2004 in the following deseribed real property
tocated in Ransom County, State of Nerth Daketa: East % (B %) of Section
Nine (9), Township 134 North, Range 54 West, and S % of the NW %
Section 15, Township 134, Range 54. Said Mortgage was duly filed with

the Ransom County, North Dakota Recorder on ilie 1 day of July, 20604 at -
11:54 o.m. as Gocument number I61771. Seid Morigage seowres wie

obligations due on the June 18, 2004 Promissory Note payable in the
original principal amount of $45,500.60, 2 true and accuraie oopy of said
Mortgage is annexed hereto as Exhibit H. ‘

The above-described Morigages ave hercinafier collectively referred -to as the

“Mortgages”. The real estate encumbered by the hMortgages will hereinafier be refemed to

‘s the “Real Property.”

13 To further collsterslize the indsbtedness due on the MNotes, the Debiors .

granted Beresford security inferesis in the Diebtors® personal property including: farm

] w5 % @ Saen by S ot R SRR ESE R O I T - LR ]
machinery, tooks, supplies, famm inventory, orop mvesioTy, vehicles, vestock, imigetors,

e .3 G St < oyl cyea = s e T PR s ~ ot er e i o P
general intangibles, rights to payment, contract rights, eCCOUNLS 1eCEl rahle and proceesds.
; - P o me e E e s e - AT LR a5 Tesr dha Dhabdoan 11 Foiioe
True and acourate copies of the security agresments execuied by the Deblors 1 12vor of

. -

Beresford are annexed hersic as Bxhibit I and hereinafter collectively referred to as the
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Debtors medes the payvment dus on March 15, 2008; however, the Debtors failed to, as
part of the Setilement Agrecmens, to pay taxes current on the real estate and due to such
failure, E«ercgz&m provided the Debiors with Notice of Default and Right to Cure, The
Debtors have faifed fo thmely cure the defsult end Beresford hes asserted that the
Debtors® interest in the real estsie including any option to purchase is terminaied and
Beresford is free to sell the real estate according to the ferms and conditions of the
Setilement Agreement.

1.10 Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, %zpon the Debtars failure to timely

cure any default under the Settlement Agreement, Beresford may conduct an auction sale

| ——

of the Real Property. Beresford has begun advertising the auction sale and was in the
process of obtaining bid packages until the Jim Gord and Wsﬁdy Gord expressed interest
in acquiring Beresford’s interest in the Settlement and Release Agreement and related
loan documents.

1.11 It is the desire of B@r@sferéft@ agsign, transfer, convey and sell to Jim Gord
and Wendy Gord (hereinafter the “Gords™) all of Beresford’s right, title and interest in
the Promissory Notes, Real Bstale Morigages, the Setflement Agreement, all related
agreements, documents, instruments and proceeds, and the Real Property.

1.12 NOW, THERBFCRE, for good and valusble considerstion, including the
payment of $64,438.78 by the Gords to Beresford, the receipt and sufficiency of which is

hereby acknowledged, Beresford and the Gords stipulate and agree as follows:



form (hersinafter the “Deed”). The Deed was duly filed with the Ransom County
Recorder on the 20 day of fanuary, 2006 at 10:30 a.m. as document number 164056, A
true and accurate copy of the Deed is annexed hereto as Exhibit L.

17  Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Debtors, prior to recordation of
the Deed, were given an option to purchase the Real Propesty on or before January i,
2006 by paying an agreed upon sum io Beresford. The Debtors failed to make this
;.}s;ymen*& and their purchase rights terminated. N

1.8  Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Debtors were given the option o

cash rent the Real Property for the years 2006 through 2010 by paying certain sums of

monies. to Reresford. The Debtors exercised their option fo rent the real estaie for the

2008 calendar year and did properly pay Beresford to rent the real estate for the 2008

calendar vear; however, the Debtors breached their agreoment with Beresford by failing
to pay outstanding real estate taxes by May 1, 2008. Beresford provided the Debtors with
numerous notices to cure the default and after their failure to de so, Beresford asserts

snder the Settlement and Release Agreement entered into between the parties, Beresford

2

&

ig 1

=

sc now to sell the real estate pursuant to the parties’ Seilement Agreement, and
terminate the Finstads further renting and/or exerciging any comirol oF diminution over
the real estate for the celendar year 2009,

rsuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Debtors were granted an option

Pt
D
Pl
5

extending to March 15, 2019 to purchase the Real Property from Beresford. To maintain

the option the Debtors were required fo make snnual payments Beresford. The

R



debis owed by the Debtors to Beresford, the real and persomal
property security held therefore and the subject matter of said
documents.

Apart from the Assigned Documents, there are no other oral or
written agreements respecting the Assigned Documents or the debts
to Beresford by the Debiors andlor the real or personal property
security held for such debis. '

Beresford has not agreed to any waiver, modification or alteration of
tha terms of the Assigned Documents.

Beresford hes complied with all of the terms and conditions of the
Assigned Documents.

The Debtors have not asserted any defenses, legal or eguitable, to
enforcement of the terms of the Assigned Documents.

Nt

Beresford lacks any knowledge to the conmfrary that its Mortgages
constitwte first priority liens and encumbrances against the Real
Property.

Beresford has the requisite power and authority to exscute this
Assignment znd perform all duties requived thereunder and
execution and performance has been duly spproved and authorized
by all necessary representatives of Beresford znd censtituies an
agreement enforceable against Beresford in accord with its terms.

Beresford is the sole owner and hiolder of the Assigned Documnents
and is not aware of any resirictions of any kind or nature, upon
Beresford in trensferring the assigned documents. DBased upon
information and belief, the Debtors entered into & Jong term lease
srrangement leasing 2 portion of the real estate to a Brain Veulek.
Reresford has reguested that Brian Veulek tender his rental
payments due under his Isese arrangement with the Debtors sither
directly to Beresford or at least place Beresford’s name on said
rental checks. Beresford assexts that it has not entered into any
‘agreement with Veulek that Voulel’s leases binds Beresford fo
Veulelc's leasing of the real estate for any periods of time subsequent
10 Decamber 31, 2008, nor has Beresford consented fo Veulek's
jeases taking priority over Beresford’s rights to terminate the rights
of the Debtors to lease snd/or purchass the real estate. Voulek may

-
!



. Assignmént of Interests
2.0 By executing this Agreement, Beresford hereby assign s, conveys, sells and
transfers to the Gords all of the right, title and interest of the Beresford in the Wotes,
Mortgages, Settlement Agreement, Security Agreement, and perfection documenis
limited to irrigators and any fixture wpon the real estate, all associsted and related

agreements, documents and instruments, afl proceeas and all related indebiedness and

security held therefor (hereinafier collectively the “Assicned Documents™} and the Real

Property. The term “proceeds™ as used herein includes, but is not Hmited to, 2ll claims

for loss or damage and/or with respect to insurance coverage available for loss or damage

tothereat Propert

irtHe of the Miorigages and the
Security Agreements.
2.1 Beresford warrants and represents to the best of its knowledge:

(a The statements contained- in- paragraphs 1.1 — 2.1 are true and
COETECE;

(b} No payments have been received by Beresford on the Notes
subseguent to September 1, 2008; :

he Debtors have failed to meke the requisite payments under the
@*‘*1 ement Agreement, 1o, pay real esiate faxes current, s0 as o
tain the right to rent or an optien to purchase the Real Property.
b&f@snfd is the sole owner of the Real Property. Beresford’s only
obligation with respect to the Real Property is to b{hid“"i an auction
sale of the same pursuant 1o the terms of the Settl: sment Agreement;

tm e

(¥ T‘% Deblors are not entitled to any credits or offects on the
ebiedness due under the Assigned Documents;

{8) The Assigned Documents constitute the secle and exclusive

2o eresford end £ - —— .
agresiments between Beresford and the Deblers with respect to any

-
B



merge into the Gords’ title to the Real Property acquired by virtue of the Quit Claim

Deed from Beresford o the Gords. The Gords shall, at ali times, retain the right to
. pursus such foreclosure proceedings s are necessary to climinete any interests,
P mortgages, liens, encumbrances, eic. asserted by other individuals or entities in or againgt
the Real Property. The delivery and/or recordation of the Quit Claim Deed from
i Beresford 1o the Gords shell not be deemed 2 waiver by the Gords of their claim of
A priority under thelr mortgage or the Mortgages encumbering the Real Property over any
i other interests, morigages, liens or ercumbrances against the Real Property.
% 2.5  Apart from the Mortgages, Beresford, or a related entity — People’s H@léiﬁg
| Cﬁ”ﬁpamr mid the & %%ﬂwmg ézspm%@d mortgages in the Real Property:
L_ A. A mortgage dated July 12, 2002 duly filed with the Ransom County, North
i Dakota Recorder on July 15, 2062 &t 4:060 pm. in Book 182 of mortgages, pages 676
i
through 703 as Document No. 158123.
a B. A morigage deted March 25, 2003 duly filed with the Ransom County,
L North Dekota Recorder om March 28, 2003 2:2:36 p.m. as Document No. 159311,
h ., A mortgage dated November 11, 2003 duly filed with the Ransom County,
A
‘ North Dakots Recorder on November 17, 2003 2t 2:05 s, as Bocement No. 160589,
4 Beresford and/or Peoples Holding company, ss apphicsble will execute satisfactions of
@ the Mortgages and deliver the satisfactions to the Geords.
| 26  Beresford’s sasignment of the Assigned Docurments and transfer of the Real
|
A‘ Property is withowt recourse. However, sueh shall not serve to limit, impair or modify
i



assert that his Ieases are binding and enforceable against Beresford
until they terminate. ‘

2.2~ The Gords shall indemnify and hold Beresford harmiess with respect {0 any
claims, causes of action, demands for bayment of money, etc. and/or for loss sustained by
Beresford s a consequence of the Gords® acts or omissions with respect to the Assigned
Documents, including the Debtors’ assertions that Beresford. canmot ‘assign its rights
under the Setilement Agresment and loan documents to the Gords and/or the Gords
failare to comply with the terms of the Settlement Agreement. The Gords will indemnify

and defend any said assertion by the Debtors at the Gords’ sole cost.

2.3 Beresford will execute and deliver to the Gords assignments jp recordable

form with respect ta the Assigned Documents. Beresford will deliver 1o the Gords the
originals of the Assigned Pocuments with all necessary assignment notetions made on

the original documents. Beresford will exscute and geliver 1o the Gords a2 Quit Claim

Deed in the form of Exhibit M znnexed hereto to the Resl Property. Additionally,

Beresford will execute and deliver to the Gords all other documents, ingtruments, efc. as
reasonably requested by the Gords to give full force 2nd effect to this Agreement.
24  Motwithstanding delivery and recordation of the Quit Claim Deed

iz

conveying the Real Property by Beresford to the Gords, the Gords hold a morigage in the

Real Property, which mortgage was duly Sled with the Rensom County, North Dakota

Recorder on September 26, 2006 at 3:25 P g8 Docoment No. 164915 which the Gords

assert emcumbers the Real Property and the parties agres that the Mortgages which are

g

being assigned by Beresford to the Gords will remain iz Tull force and effect and will not



the representations and the warranties of Beresford made herein and those representations

and warraniies will survive the closiy ng of the iransactions contemplated by this

Agrecment and remain fully binding and enforpesble.

277  This Agreement sets forth the sntire agrecment of the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter of this Agresment and may not be m@éiﬁ@és other than
pursuant 0 2 Tarther written agrepméﬁ executed by the party alleged to be bound by such
modification.

2.8 Ne delay in enfoecing any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be

deemed @ waiver of any such provisions absent the execution of 2 waiver in writing by

the party claimed to have waived any rights hereunder, Aﬁ}{ waiver shall be limited to

the particular fact situation and shall not be considered a waiver of any future claims or

rights under this Agreement or with respect to any other fact situstion.
2

-9 This Agreement is to be interpreted and construcd under the laws of the
State of North Dakota.
2.10  With respect te actions under this Agreement, time is of the essence.

241

»~J

he parties agree that this Agreement becomes valid and enforcesble once

it is executed by an suthorized representative of Beresford and by the Gords. Execution
of the consent 10 assignment by the Debtors is not & condition precedent to the validity

and enforcement of this Agreement,



Pated: , 2008, BERESFORD BANCORPORATION,

INC,
By:
Its:
Dated: , 2008,
Jim Gord
Dated: , 2008.
Wendy Gord

11
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) De{:ember 2, 2008

Mr. Jon Brakke
Attorney at Law
P.O. Box 1389
Fargo, ND 58107

Jack G. Marcil d .y N Gary A Rockne

. Ronald . Mclean Ll B -3 Office Mamager

\ Roger J. Minch . - e =
Brad A. Sinclaic Armond G, Erickson
Jeme L Dynes ) Lowell W, Lundberg
Timothy G, Richard —
Joseph A, Weih, Ir it Norman G. Tenneson
“Micholes D. Thorgton SINCE 15888 Chester J. Seridand
Also Licensed in MN ‘

(1509-1996)

Sent Via Emal, Fax and Regular Mail
jbrakke@vogellaw.com/476-7676

Tz

i’fﬁ}fﬁﬁiﬁ.

Lg‘:::zf:.u -

RE: Beresford Banoérporatidn As

i oan Documentation and Real

" 4o the Gords
Dear Mr. Braklke:

| e@mailed you at 4:49 a.m., on Dece
Agreement that was

awaiting for my client,

signment of all of its Rights and Interest in
Estate With John Finstad and Lorie Finstad

mber. 2, 2008, informing you if the Assignment .

redrafted by both of us last night and completed at 5:15 p.m,,
Frank Farars reviéw and approval of the same, and your client's

review and approval, has not been ap roved by Frank Farar. | informed you at 4:48

a.m., this morning that Frank Farrar has not
recording the deed from Beresford Bancorporation to James

Assignment Agreement by

gramted you authority to consummate the

-and Wendy Gord nor recording of any, morigage releases. Frank Farrar has reviewed

the Assignment Agreement and the A
the understanding between Beresfor
Pursuant to numerous conversations |
with Jim Gord, it was Beresford Ban

receive more from the liguidation of

ignment Agreement dees not accurately reflect
Bancorporation -and John and Lorie Finstad.
have had with yourself and Frank Farrar.has had

rporation’s intention that Beresford would never
John and Lore Finstad's reat estats, than full

payment of the indebtedness outstanding to Beresford Bancorporation, the approximate
amount of $64,000.00 and any surplus proceeds would be repgidftendered to John and
| orie Finstad. Frank Farrar has never wanted io receive more than the debt owing o

Beresford Bancorporation and should

Beresford receive any surplus from the sale of the

Einstad real estate. such will be retumed to #he Finstads. This has been represented to

the Finstads on numerous occasions |
of the Setiemént Agreement and

;executed by Jgt‘m and Lorie Finstad g
/’ ;

f

o/ . ArropsmEys & COUNEELD)
; i

yrior 40 and subsequent to the Finstads' execution
Release Agreement dated January 10, 2008,
ind delivered:o Beresford Bancorporation, Frank

&7 Law - A PrORESSIONAL CORPORATION




Farrar has reviewed the Assignment Agresment and the original Agreemsnt entered
info between Beresford Bancorporation and the Finstads is not contained in the
Assignment Agresment nor Is gocurately reflected In the Sefilement Agreement.
‘Moreover, Beresford Bancomoration cannot execute the Assignment Agreement since
Beresford Bancomporation fs now knowledgeable that the Seftlement Agreement and
Release Agreement does not fruly represent the understanding between Beresford
Bancorporation and the Finstads and that the Assignment Agreement warranties would
be incorrect under the Assignment Agresment. My office has informed you that
Beresford Bancorporation, pursuant fo Settlement Agresment, noticed the Finstads' real
estate for sale, received bids in excess of $928 000.00 for the sale of the real estate
which Beresford Bancorporation was owed $64,000.00. it was Beresford
Bancorporation's intentions is to sell sufficient real estate to pay off the Finstads
obligation outstanding to Beresford, $64,000.00, and then convey the remainder portion
of the real estate and/or all surplus proceeds from the sale of the real estate to John
Finstad. Because of John Finstad's [etter indicating that he was suicidat and may harm

himself if Beresford sold the real estate), Beresford agreed to assigned ifs interestinthe -

real estate to the Gords with the understanding that the Gords could enly enforce the

assignment documents for the amount outstanding to Beresford Bancorporation. [t was
Beresford's understanding that the benefit of the Gords recelving Beresford’s interestin

ioa the real estate far sale, sell the real estate, file with the

court prior fo the sale of the real estate a request for writ of atizchment in legal
proceedings the Gords have commenced against Finstad and in legal proceedings the
Gords have not commenced yet against Finstad sesks a court oraer guthorizing the
selzure of said funds sufficient to pay the Gords infull on thelr unenforceable real estate
mortgages and the note secured by & security Interest in the Finstads' personal property
for a total amount of $450,000.00, plus the $64,000.00 the Gords will pay Beresford
Bancorporation to asguife Beresfard's interest in the real estate, and remit all surplus
sale proceeds fo the Finstads, at one time estimated to be in excess of $400,000.00.

' Beresford also believed that the Gords, once acquiring Beresford’s interest in the real
estate, and in lisu of a writ of attachment, may negotliate with the Finstads, obtain
payment on the $64,000.00, convey the real estate to the Finstads so that the
mortgages the Finstads have execuied and deliverad fo the Gords are now enforceable
since the Finstads would now own the real estate, and efther foreclose its morigages or
take some other appropriate action to enforce iis rorigages.

As you will recall, this Assignment Agresment was redrafted at 5:15 last night. The
pariies agreed that pending review and signaiure of the agresment by cllents, the
settlement proceeds, approximately $64,000.00 the Gords were fo tender fo Famar
would be escrowed with my office while your office would escrow the deed and the
satisfaction of morigages. Since the agreement does not accurate reflect Beresfor

Bancorporation’s understanding and agresment with "the Finstads and since the
Assignment Agreement warranties are not accurate, Beresford Rancorporation cannot

execute the Agreement. Please contact my office In which we can exchange the

unrecorded deed and unrecorded safisfaction of mortgages to my office and | can
exchange the $64,000.00 of payment you have tendered to my office.

Quiet Title Action

EXHIBIT "F" .

Page 2 0f 3




Yours very truly,

SERKLAND LAWFIRM ;

BAS/sim

Cc:. Frank Farmar

- : ' . Quiet Title Action
; . . EXHIBIT "F"
Page 3 of 3




Jan 28 08 10:45a Gord Plastics . 1-815-788-8045 P.2
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Jack G. Mareil T GmyARgsme” " T

Nonald §. McLaan . Officr Menager

Toger J. Minek m———= %
Retired;

Maurezn Holman
Brad A. Sinclair . | Armond G. Enckson
Jane L. Dynes ' ] A & Lowell W. Londbery

Timothy G, Richard |,
¥ foseph A, Wetchy, Jr, . Norman 15, Tenneson
Besly D. Nelson LAW FIRM {1898-192)
Lieened Chester J, Seehiond
Al i MN SINCE {E8B {1509-1946)

January 28, 2009

John Finstad

14060 Highway 27
Lishon, ND 58054

RE: John Finstad

Dear Johm

The purpose of this correspondence is o' confirm my telephone conference with Don
Eppler on January 28, 2008, | contactediDon Eppler regarding Brian Veulek litigation
re!aimg to the lease that you entered inio with um. Don Eppler asseris that he has
been in contact with Mike Nelson, the atiorney for the Gards, and thal the Gords have
offered the Finstad real estate for sale to Brian Veulek, that Brian Veuiek has declined to
purchase It because of John Finstad's potential intsrest in the same, that the Gords will
be flling 2 proceeding to- have the court determine that the Finstads have na interest in

the real estate.

Pursuant to our conversations, | have informed you that Frank Famar and myseilf will

’ " testify that | have informed the Gords' Jegal counsel, Jon Brakke, and that Frank Farrar
has informed the Gords, that pursuant to the Finstad agreement, the real estate is (o be
sold, the indebtedness nutstandmg to Farrar is to be pajd and the remaining proceeds
are o be tendered lo the Finstads. .

Yours very truly,

SERKLAND-LAW FIRM e . S

Brad
BAS/sim

ferd "
A,Sinclair

Arrorners & Counserors At Law + A ProFessionaL CORPORATION .
10 Roberts Street « P.O. Box 6017 « Fargoe, North Dakot=z 58108-6017
Telephone (701} 232-8957 « Pax (701) 237-404% » www.serklandlawcom

. EXHIBIT “V*




i Jack G, Mareil Gary A Rockne ;
S RonsldFLMclean _ Office Manager'
¢ % DRoger].Minch | —_—

A Maureen Holman Retired:

{ Brad A. Sinclair - Armond G. Beickson
' Jane L. Dynes Lowell W, Lundberg
1! Timothy G. Richard e
A Joseph A. Wetch, Jr. Norman G. Tenneson
Beily D. Nelson {1898-1982}
: —_— Chester J. Seckland
1 February 3, 2009
John Finstad ;
14060 Highway 27 :
Lisbon, ND 58054 ;
! RE: John Finstad
L Deardohn: _
This correspondence is in regards fo ypur request outlining what occurred relating to
A your obligation outstanding {o Beresford {Bancorporation.

* puistanding to Beresford

Prior fo your bankruptey p}bceedings,

with the Ransom County Recorder's
Financing Statements fiied with the Ra
office.

When John.ant'i Lori Finstad filed for

ohn and Lori Finstad had various obligations

Bancorporation as evidenced by real estate morigages filed

ice and the Uniform Commercial Code UCC
som County/North Dakota Secretary of States'

hankruptcy refief, a setflernent agreement was

entered into between Beresford Bancorporation and the Finstads. The agreement

provided that the Finstads conveyed ali
to Beresford Bancorporation, and in
UCGC/Financing Statements against the
up to the Finstads to further encumbe:
Beresford Bancorporation. In furthe

of their rights, title and interest in the real estate
return Beresford Bancorporation released its
Finstads’ personal property freeing the -property
and/or sell without tendering any procéeds fo
consideration of the transaction, .Beresford

Bancorporation granted the Finstads an option to purchase the real estate, and the right

to lease the property. When the Fins
in excess of $300,000.00, the parti

s tendered to Beresford Bancorporation a sum
orally modified the settlement agreement 1o

provide that in the event the Finstads were in default of their obligations outstanding fo

Beresford Bancorporation and the F

Bancorporation would place the Finst

either requiring a bid price for the enl

satisfy the Finstads’ debt to Famar

Finstads. Beresford Bancorporation ag
. - . {

instads failed to cure the defauli, Beresford
ad property for sale, take the highest offer by

:re real estate or seling enough real estate fo
Lnd release the remaining real estate {o the

reed that all surplus proceeds received from the

Armvenmunros £ Cormaens ane dr T oo o A Doaenestnarar amnan 4TIONRT




auction sale, after payment of the Beresford Bancorporation debt, would be tendered to -

the Finstads. .

i

Because the Finstads defaulted ‘ii¥ |their obligations outstanding to Beresford
Bancorporation; Beresford Bancorporation notified the Finstads of their defauit and right

fo cure. The Finstads failed to cure the default. Beresford Bancorporation solicited bids
to the real estate and was going to ¢gnduct an auction sale of the property, obtain
sufficient proceeds o pay the. Fihstads' obligations outstanding to Beresford
Bancorporation in full, approximately $55,000.00, and either convey the remaining real
estate to the Finstads after payment o] Beresford Bancorporation debt in full or convey
all remaining surplus sale proceeds ig the Finstads. Due to concemns about John
Finstad's health if Beresford Bancorpgration proceed forward with the sale of the real
estate, Beresford Bancorporation agreed fo assign ifs interest o, in the Finstad
settlement agreement, fo John and] endy Gord for the amount outstanding to
Beresford Bancorporation, approxirq ely $65,000.00. Beresford Bancorporation

received bids for the Finstad real estate|in an amount in excess of $900,000.00.

Beresford Bancorporation and the Gords held discussions and were nearly in a mutual
agreement as to the terms and conditions of assigning Beresford Bancorporation's

interest in the real esta’t’é“to—ﬁ'xeﬁcnfi when-the-parlies-were-unable fo agree fo the

terms and conditions of the assignment language. Beresford Bancorporation, President
Frank Farrar, informed the Gords of the oral modification of the setilement agreement
entered into between Beresford and ihe Finstads on numerous occasions and prior o
parties nearly completion of the térn;r i and conditions of the assignment agreement.
Beresford's legal counsel, myself, informed the Gords’ legal counsel, Jon Brakke of the
oral modification of the bankruptcy seitlement agreement with the Finstads. Because
the parties believed that they were close in consummating the assignment agreement,
the Gords fransferred the pay off finds to Beresford Bancorporation and Beresford
Bancorporation executed a quit clairng. eed conveying the real estate fo the Gords o be
held until the assignment agreement was executed. A dispute arose as to the final
language of the assignment agreement between Beresford Bancorporation and the
Gords as to describing in the assighment agreement the oral agreement between
Beresford Bancorporation and John and Lori Finstad regarding the right to all sale
proceeds from the sale of the real estate upon the Finstads’ default of the agreement.
Correspondence was sent fo Attorney Jon Brakke on December 2, 2008, prior to 10:00
am., in addifion fo an email being |sent fo Attorney Jon Brakke at 4:49 am., on
December 2, 2008, informing Jon Brakke that the agreement in negotiations between
the parties has not been approved} by Beresford Bancorporation and that Beresford
Bancorporation did not authorize Jon Brakke to consummate the assignment by
recording the deed from Beresforcii Baticorporation to James and Wendy Gerd nor
further encumbering the real estate! |Despite the emall at 4:49 am., on December 2,
2008, and the comrespondence frogy my office of December 2, 2008, the deed was
recorded on December 2, 2008, & approximately 4:00 p.m., in the Ransom County
Recorder's office. The deed was re;a}:ﬁrded contrary to Beresford’s instructions.

{

ek,




conditions of

funds that the

unaware of the

Yours yéry truly,

i

[

| The parties have been subsequently|ynable to further agree
the assignment agreem
assignment agreement, Beresford Banc
Gords and the Vogel L
escrowed pending consummation of,
Gords recording of fhe
informed my office of the recordation on approximately December 23, 2008.

; Because the deed was recorded there
Bancorporation refuses to sign the assignm
of the correspondence that'| have forwarded o Atforney
matter dated December 2,-2008. The|
the Gords only grants the Gords fitle
sale proceeds in eXcess of the amou
debt ouistanding, approximately $65,0
proceeds from the sale of the real este

as to the terms and
nt. Upon the inability to consummate the
rporation on February 13, 2009, received the

Firmn remitted to my office that was to be
he assignment agreement. My office was
deed for approximately 20 days until you

as been no resolution of this maitter, Beresford
ent agreement. Enclosed please find a copy
Jon Brakke regarding this
rrespondence provides that the conveyance o
the property but the Finstads are entitied to all
ecessary to safisfy Beresford Bancorporation’s
0.00. The Finstads are entifled to all surplus

5 .0

i
U

SE ~TRI
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Enclosure

Cc: Jon Brakke
Frank Farrar
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e e =R e of Term Pormit

1, Jobhn Fmstad, release 10 the Sheyerme Valley Grazing Associgﬁon the following, term

pﬁrmlt

150 AlPs attached 15 Narth Durler Allotment m Durler Block

The release is based on 2 purchasc by Iames and Wendy Gord of the base property as

follows:

E% of Section 9-134-54 (Shenford Township)
§ % NW % of Section 15—1311—54 (Shenford Townshlp)

/7 VIS S Y )//23/29

/ Slgnawimra and Date

Raquest for Term Permit

1, James and Wendy Gord, tequest the following term permit be issned to me by the
Sheyeme Valley Grazing g Association: .

150 AU’s aﬂ:a_ched to North Durler Allotment in Dusler Blo:k

This request is based oo my purchase of the following base property (formerly Johm

Fmst.d)

pue———— g

% ‘of Section 9- 13454 {Shc]}fo;d Townsnrp)
YV WW %ot Sccton 15—1" 454 {Shenford Township)

e Ny AL

Signatrre and etk James Gord

0(1&3317\& /\r\, - ”/]r{/oq
" ‘Wendy Gord

ature "and Dafe

EXHIBIT “8%




ST

s =R JamEs .ﬁﬁd":Wendy' ('}ord';'lwoulﬁ ﬁke‘-»térfaqﬁest-mamb BI‘SbiP 4nte- the-Sheyenne Valley -Gr-a-z-ing;. Bl
. Association. Thave purchased fhe former John Finstad base-property. S

My base proiacrty is listed as follows:
" B4 of Section 9-134-54 (Shenford Township)
. . SYNW% of SQection 15-134-54 (Shenford Township)

My headguarters will be located at. 14060 Hwy. 27, Lisbon, ND 58054, which is located om a

tract in the NWiNEZ of 9-134-54., )

Attached is my $5.00 membership fee.

s . i e //’%ﬁﬂ . A — P 27
~-y Sigmftﬁc James Gord Date _ b

. T )‘ 1.4 ”’(H‘/ﬁfi
_ Signature }:;Wendy Gord Date

]74.




Igthomas@drtel.net

Pagc 1 of 1

From: "Robin D. Busch" <rbusch@ohnstadiaw.
To: <Ipthomas@drtel.net>

Ce: <cowgrdpa@drtel.net>; "Michael Nei
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2009 4:59 P\
Attach:  Agresment with Exhibits_pdf; BILL OF
Subject: James and Wendy Gord/John Finstag

Lyte, John Finstad had difficulty opening t&
you. By copy of this e-mail, I am letting hi

Attached is the Agreement between James &
Pmmzssery Note Exhibits, along with the o
sign the Agreement and both John and Lorid
be returned to me by tomorrow, December 1
until tomorrow, we cannot yet have James a
seon as Troy Goltz provides the value of the
the Promissory Note and then fax and overs

son” <mnelson@ohnstadiaw.com>

SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY.pdf
Agr eement

tiachments to this e-mail and he sshed that I send it to
mow I have done so.

d Wendy Gord and John Finstad with the Bill of Sale and
zinal Bill of Sale (the one not marked Exhibit A). John must
must sign the Bill of Sale. Beth signed decuments need to

, 2009, Because we will not know the value of the catile

3d Wendy sign and retorn the origingl Promissory Note. As
cattle, James and Wendy will fill the value in the blank, sign

ght it to us. Mr. Nelson s in the process of drafting the

separate agreement memorializing the agrepment between you and Jim {with regard to Jim selling the

cattle back to you under specific conditions).

I will forward that as soon as it has been completed. Please

call me if you have any guestions regarding|these documents or this process.

<<Agreement with Exhibiis.pdf>> <<BILL OF SALE

Robin Busch, Paralegal
Ohinstad Twichell, P.C.

901 13th Avenie East

P.O. Box 458

West Fargo, ND 58078-0458
Felephone: 781-282-3249
Fax: 707-282-0825

E.Riail: rbusch@oknstadlaw.com

OF PERSONAL PROPERTY .pdf>>

This e-mail communication may contain privileged and confidential information. 1t is intended only for the use of the

he intended recipient of this communicaiion, you are hereby notified
G. or copying of this communication is sirictly prohibited. If you have
iately notify the sender by e-mait or by telephone at (701) 282-3240
es. Thank you for your cooperation.

intended recipient(s) identified above. If you are no
that any use, dissemination, distribution, downloadi
.reteived this communication in error, please imme
and DELETE the communication and destroy all ¢

3/15/2012
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AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 2nd day of December, 2009, betwee

Tohn Finstad, whose address is 14060 Highway 27, Lisbon, North Dakota 58054 (hereinafter called

“Finstad”), and James Gord and Wendy Gord, whose address is 4450 East Séndwich Road,

Sandwich, Tilinois 60548 (hereinafter collectively called “Gord™).

RECITALS:
A.  Finstad and Gord desire to preserve and continue in effect a grazing permit associated

. with agricultural land in Ransom County, North Dakota, legally described as follows, to-wit:

R0 Section-0-134-54-(Shenford Township)
-

72700000 tIUnT T

SYNWY of Section 15-134-54 (Shenford Township)
(hereinafier called “Base Property”).
B. The Base Property is currently subject to the Grazing Apreement and Rules of

Management Between Shevenne Valley Grazing Assbciation and United States Department of

Acriculture Forest Services for the Period of2009 - 2019, including Rules C.3.,C.4,, and D.1. of the

Rules of Management.

G The Headquarters of ﬂ1emBasévPro‘1:>ertyunder thépermif tobe acqujra& bj{ Gord is located

in the NEY% of Section 9-134-54 (Shenford Township), Ransom Coﬁnty, North Dakota.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration 6f the mutual covenants set forth below, Finstad and Gord

hereby azg_re-é as ffoilov?s:

L. This Agreement is conditioned upon Sheyenne Valley Grazing Association acceptiﬁg

Gord's grazing permit application and approving it. If for any reason Gord does not get the grazing

permit (whether through the fault of Finstad, Gord, or for any other reason) then this Agreement for a

Pagelof 5

EXHIBIT “17 - i, dM ¢



S

. farm/ranch manager of the real property des

James and Wendy Gord/J ohn Finstad Agreement
farm/ranch manager chall be mill and void, and there Wﬂl be 1o hiring of Finstad by Gord 1o be a‘
cribed in recfcal pamgraph A above.-

2. Finstad and Gord are entering into this Agreement in order o preserve increased potential

value in the land described in recital paragraph A above, by virtue of confinuing 2 grazing permit

presently associated with that land.

3. ¥ Gord is successful in petting a grazing permit from Sheyenme Valley Grazing

Association for the Base Property, then Finstad is lnred as Gord’s farm/ranch manager and is required

h hire to reside on the Headquarters on 2 year-long bas1s as his primary res1dence forthe -

=

as apart of suc:

L

L

TR

L

purpose of helping to conduct the livestock operatlon and tobe actively mvolved Wit the wrimterfeeding =

operation which :s condncted on the Base Property.

4, The hiring of Finstad called for in this Agreement shall be an at-will hiring, terminable

by either party at any time.
e on the Base

5. Any expenditure of money by Finstad for the care and feeding of cattl

- Pr opeﬁy shall require the prior wnt‘en consent of Gord

6 \ Gord will purchase Finstad’s present | cattle herd 5£37 head located on the Base Property,

for a purchass pnce of $450 per head, for a total purchase price of $16,650.00. Finstad will issue to

Gord a Bill of Sale for the 37 head, in the form of attached Eﬂllb‘lt «p» Payment for the caftle to be

purchased by Gord shall be 'by (a) & notmegotizble promissory note, iﬁ"thé“foﬁ‘n of attached Exhibit
«B,” in the principél amount of $7,780.37, with interest to accrue at the rate of 2% per annum, which

promissory note shall be payable in full (principal and accrued interest) on December 31,2010; plus the

sum of $8,869.63 to be paid to Farmers Utiton Oil Company, of Lisbon, Torth Dakota, to pay off a lien

on Finstad’s cattle to be purchased by Gord.

Page2o0f 5
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James and ’Wendy Gord/John Finstad Acreement

7. This Ageement nlvolvmg cattle/a grazing permit/a form-ranch manager, is totally

separate and apart from, and has no.connection whatsoever with, on-geing litigation or future litigation ;

on debt presently owed by Finstad to Gord. Gord reserves all Ii ghts to pursue such liti gation against

Finstad, as though there were no catfle/grazing permit/farm-ranch manager arrangements between

Finstad and Gord.

8. Finstad shall be responsible for the care and feeding of the cattle, as Gord’s hired

farrn/ranch manager of the Base Property and Gord’s cattle fesding operation;

9. Thepurchaseof additional cattle, and sale of any and all catfle, will be determined by the

PSS

(Gords, as OWIeLs ofthe-eattte

10.  Farming of the cropland located on the real property described in recital paragraph A

above will be controlled exclusively by Gord, as owner of the land.

1L The consideration goingto Finstad, in part, is the right to live on the Headquarters during

* theterm of this Agreement. Finstad is responsible for maintenance ofall mprovements including farm

bufldings, fencing, and the mobile home (which mobile home is the property of Finstad), upkeep, and

ﬁ:ﬂmes and all other expenses associated with hvmg onthe Headquarters property. The only expenses'

Gord will pay are real estate taxes and property insurance and liability insurance.

12. The intent of the parties is to retain the potential value of the grazing permit for the Base

?.roperty'.

13, If there is any addi £onal lien on Finstad’s cattle (other than the lien to be paid off

pursuant to paragraph.6 above) at the time they are sold to Gord, the amount of the lien shall be applied

as a credlt on the promissory note feferr ed to above.

14, All prior negotiations and communications between the parties concerning the subject
matter of this Agreement aré merged into this Agreement.
Page3 of 5
st



Fames and Wendy Gord/John Finstad Agreement
15. ‘This Agraement may not be zmended except in erhncr 51gued by all partles 4o this

‘ o
)i Agreamcnt. |
16.  ThisAgreementmaybe executed in counterparts and wheneach party to this Agreement
| .
. - has execited at least one counterpart, the Agreement ghall be binding upon all parties hereto.
; IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and
, year first-above WIIteD.
i
|
= | - Z iam@u Gord
.
[ R
| Hlind WL
\ M\/(J \\/ 1}_‘)
A Wendy Gétd
l ¢

Page4of 5
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James and Wendy Gord/John Fmstad Agreement

U A Tt

mstad

FAUSERS\LIT\GonNAGREENENT.vpd

Page50f 5
snF



Gord Plastics

From: cowgrdpa@drtel.net

“ant: Friday, April 08, 2011 7:23 AM
¥ gordplastics@comcast.net

Cc: rpanzer@lstfarmcredit.com

Subject: Fwd: nd

Dear lim;

| put .com rather than .net, { have to tell you that { am puzzied as to why there is any thoughts with respect to havelng
anything to do with Troy. Lorie and { went last night to ook at the hay and we discussed this situation about why Troy is
even involved with our operation. | have not heard from him or anybody else and if | wouldn't of found the hay where
would we be right now? | am going to be very busy on my days off this week just to tag and get things done that need to
be done but | had to let the cows out on the corn stalks so they could atleast get something to eat. The E-mail below
states some more things and maybe it is a complete eplaination. | have the money to buy the farm back and | want to
have the cows with you. What | have told the bank is that you would just pay me a set per weaned calf price and that |
(john) would provide alf the machinery, feed, operating and Jim would just provide the cows, bulls and any replacement
heifers. This would make both of our lives very simple. As | have stated below the land doesn't need to be rented to
- anyone. With the proper arrangement | will get the farming donel{llll. I have not gotten anything for my time and
- efforts along with members of my farming, while Troy and anybody else has been making money. We have not talked
about this subject at all and | will be finishing the {and financing without this discussion. | have let you down in the past
but since then | have been perfect. The only reasons that anything has gone wrong is poor feed and poor farming. K-Tis
- still owed $15,000.00. Lorie and | don't drive around in new pickups and order people around like a big shot. | hope that
'+ will work with us on our property, because we want to go forward with you on the cattle operation. For Lorie and |
wits is the time to get going again given the current opportunities that are avaiable to us. Please read the E- mail below
thanks John

---- Original message -

~ >Date: Wed, 6 Apr 2011 05:05:46 -0500 (CDT)

- >From: <cowgrdpa@drtel.net>

- >Subject: nd

 >To: gordplastics@comcast.com

b

. >Dear Jim;

>l do not have time to send a complete message to you right now but |
. >want to get something to you for your thought. | have told you that |
- >have the resources to buy the farm

© back

. >and this is true. It would still involve you and the

fe

i »and you making money. Jim, my wife [ have cooperated and work our

4
S



tts off to make everything work. Youand !

't

ed anybody but each other to make this all work! Troy s in St.

uis and he has left me with the responsiblity of finding hay, along

th all of my other responsiblities and that is fine because | will

wk myself to death to get my farm back and to regain your confidence.
ave needed hay since Saturday but | have been able to get along. |

ve found hay near me that is better and cheaper than what we have
en getting. | will be giving his name to you and we will be getting

me hay this weekend. Inthe meantimel

~ Hing some hay from Mike Mund. Jim | can farm all of the land. 1

ve sald that | want my farm back but { have

o
- ver land for you to buy but | don't have time to get specific because
- ave to feed g calf and then go to

-k

- ave earned this right so don't do anything. | spoke

i

. dd yesterday and the board had penalize me, and it will

' orced against you this year, | can expain it to you, later on today,
- d Todd will call you with a explaination too. We really needto

-k, Tknow that you are very

-

- 1 will be off on Friday so that | can lay out the Plan for the farm
. this year. Call if you need to. Thanks John. Please do nothing

. til we speak on Friday. I will send you a complete plan so that we
- discuss it



- Gord Plastics T—

From: cowgrdpa@drtel.net
wnt: Thursday, March 17, 2011 418 PM
100 gordplastics@comcast.net
Subject: nd
Attachments: 2011 Calving Worksheet.xls; Commencerablity Statement 2011.pdf; Map Scans.pdf;

Cattle Report.dog Dear SVGA.doc

Dear lim;

Here is the information that | promised you. See the following attachments. | know that you don't want to speak about
© this but | am planning to buy the farm back. | gave you a lot of reasons as to why, and the last reason is that | can't see
you taking all of our equity. | have worked my butt off to make you money and to make the past right, l have put up

- with Troy and all of his BS. i hope that you know by now that | am willing to do the best job | can, and | just want you to
~ treat Lorie and me fairly. | will work with you in an equitable and fair fashion with other cattle and other grazing. | have
* received nothing for my work and we have paid for a iot of expenses. | have done this in cooperation to get my farm

~ back. | want to farm the land this year in cooperation with Ron Rotenberger. Perhaps Brian can rent the NW 1/4 of 15

© for this one

year.

If you want to continue working with Troy that is fine, but count me out. | have been unhappy with the quality of hay

- that he's delivered this winter. He also did a poor job of farming the land last year if his yields were as low as he claims.

. Ron Rotenberger rented our land for many years and always had high yields. | think an independent scil testing service

- should be hired to test the soil this year and be compared to the soil tests done last year. am very concerned about the
| fertility. | am also concerned that Troy has still not paid KT irrigation from two years ago. You can talk to Ken Storm,

e owner, at 701-281-9418 to confirm this.

There is some alfalfa land to rent but | need to buy my land back so that | have operating money to put up the feed. |
know that you never thought that | would get the financing but it will soon be in place. | have wondered why you are
talking to Nelson as it costs money, and it must mean that you have no trust in me to do anything. After losing the

- pipelining job through no fault of my own, it sent our lives into even more of a tailspin. All Frank wanted back was his
money owed and that is what was told to everybody when Frank sold his interest to you. Warren Anderson would have
bought you out completely at that time, and would have sold the farm back to Lorie and me. | had hoped that 1 would

- have done enough good to restore your convidence in my abilities, but by constantly talking to Troy and Mike Nelson it
seems you have no confidence in me.

If Ron would rent his cattle operation to you and [, why would you trust me to take care of 325 cows on his permit and
take care of my permit here at my house? Ron told me he will only do something with his permit if | get my land back,

~and that is only because he doesn't want us to lose our farm and our equity. Ron would be the one to be sortof a
ohservation person for you, someone that you could trust.! want to make one thing very clear to you, | do want to run as
many cows as posshite with you. Howevar, | am not going to do it the way it's baing done now. | want to have it so that
all you would need to provide is the cows and | would provide everything else for the operation.

As | told you in the last email | have been told by Lorie that if we lose this farm she is leaving. In the past | told her that
- you could be trusted and that we would get to buy the farm back based on Franks guarentees and the discussions that
we have had. You can call Ron at 701-680- 1995. Ron is the most honest and decent person that you will ever meel.
- Feg] free to call Lorie if you have questions at 701-680-0846.



ood read this E-mall as well as add her thoughts

: sorry that this took longer than | thought but Lorie wanted to pr
All My Best John and Family

-z this affects her too. will have the pic for you in the morning.




Gord Plastics _

From: cowgrdpa@drtel.net
ni: Wednesday, June 15, 2011 1:15 PM
vt gordplastics@comcast.net
Subject: ND Summarys
Dear Jiny;

| am going to summarize the past two months on the money that we owe some people and why and some other
bookkeeping subjects.
Mike Mund
I used Mike Munds pickup and trailer to hay hay home from Bill Bergs and George Pilgrims. The breakdown is this;
4 Trips to Bills @ 46 Miles @ $3.00 per mile = $552.00
3 Trips to Georges @ 52 Miles @ $3.00 per mile = $468.00 Then since the end of March sometime | have been getting
diesel fuel from mike because | could fill the whole tank and this would save me time.
200 gallons diesel @ $4.00 per gallon = $800.00 You need to know that Mike also has done other little things for us and
they were small things but the weren't to be paid for. When we sold the calves yesterday Mike bought back two of the
calves that weren't bringing what | thought they should. Mike gave us the aption to keep them and he would put them
out on his pasture with some other yearlings or he would buy them himself and do the same thing, this will make us
some money also. He is not charging us anything for this. Mike is also going to pasture the 5 bulls and the 4 cows with
his cattle for the season, that will save you about $900.00 on what should be pasture rent. These figures that | have
given you are real and not inflated, you can as Ron or anybody else for that matter.
Kyle Geske
Kyle is my son-in-law and | needed to used his pickup and Mike Munds trailer to go get a last load of hay from George
Pilgrim. Kyle didn't charge us anything for his trailer but to iltustrate the expense of hauling t would give you this

imple; Katie our daughter filled the pickup at Cenex with fuel before she came to the farm. We all went to George
Figrims to get the hay then we came back to my farm and unloaded the hay and then Katie went into Lishon to work at
the hospital where she is a nurse. The next morning she filled the pickup at Cenex on our account that vou had
established. It took $80.00 to fill the pickup. My reason for this illustration is to illustrate that Mike only received 565-
75.00 for the wear and tear on his pickup and trailer which isn't much at all, and | drove the pickup and Semi alf of the
time except for one time when Pat McMahon drove it for us. So if you add all of this up it comes to $1820.00, | do think
that Mike should get $2,000.00 for his efforts, but that is your call.
Todd Anderson
As | explained to you, there was a cow and 4 yearlings that got over the fence with Todd's cattle and then we got them
back and then they went back again so rather than keeping on getting them back we left them there until Todd went to
pasture and then he hauled the yearlings over to my place and then Mike Mund hauled the wild one to Sisseton and you
got the check for that one. Todd also has helped us with his 4 wheelers with the cows. He also went out into the
pasture and fixed fence so that the cows could go to pasture, | didn't have a way to get around the pasture so Todd paid
his hired help to go in my place. So what Todd feels he is owed would be as follows;
5 Head for 60 days @ $2.00 = $600.00
4 Hours on the 4wheeler @ $15.00 = $60.00

Total $660.00

I spoke with Ron about money for him and his crew that came over to work cattle. | told him that | felt that he should
get $75.00-100.00 per person and there were 4 people and then $100.00 for the 3 4wheelers that we used to chase the
cattle out to pasture. He stated that he would discuss this with you.
Lorie and | were also there and Lorie prepared a meal for all of us before we drove the cattle out to the pasture.
| don't want to change gears on you but the bank is coming out for a farm visit for the fand loan and | am going to meet
with the Youngs who own the 320 acres to the east of my farm. You stated earlier this spring that the penalty for the

{e should only be assessed on me when | buy the farm back, which made me happy that you felt that way. You also
once said that they are afraid of us and | don't know about the afraid but there is group that really doesn't want to see

1
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- scceed but little do they know that | will succeed and | want you to be with me but | need to buy my farm back first, |
- xpaid for allot of things and | have gotten paid back for some.

. bill for the Beet tailings and the remainder of the vet bill and the soil tests are also being faxed to you today.

- 1e been working on the cow-calf numbers, | will say that we have larger calves than last year.

- sare the addresses for Todd and Mike.

- 1 Anderson

- 7140th Ave, SE -

~jor, ND 58060 701-680-1154

. 2 Mund
. 75 75th St SE

- ior, ND 58060 701-680-0221 .
* e are other things that | am golng to send to you but this is the most pressing at this time. The bulls will be going

- today also. | work the next 4 nights from 6:00pm to 6:00am.
. 2agreatday John




- MEMORANDUM

) Date: - Sgptgn}bgr 212 2012 .
10 R
= FROM: WCA

RE: J ohn Finstad

= File No: WCA Personal

About 5 years ago I loaned: $42,500 to John Finstad:

I also understood John owned approximately 400 acres of land and that the land had a RE Mtg
on it of less than $100,000 with a Frank Farrar and his Beresford Bank Corporation: out of South
Dakota. o

John also. owed an amount. in excess of: $400,000 to: a-Jim ‘Gord out of Illinois ‘which was not

subject to a-real estate mortgage.
[ =

John gave me security for my obligation but that was subject to a'prior lién so I have not been
j paid. About 4+ yrs ago John contacted me about pressure he was. receiving from Frank Farrar
who apparently had an option to acquire the farm if the debt wasn’t paid. Farrar was threatening
; to take the farm. John explained he wanted me to take out Farrar and Gord and that I would
1 receive a real estate mortgage which would be a first lien on the property. .- o

So I said why not have Gord do the Very same thing as he has more 4t stake and it would give
4 Gord a better security position than he currently had.

John asked if I would contact Gord to see what his thoughts were. I contacted Gord and told him
d I was willing to take Farrar out of the picture but thought it made more sense if he-did it since he
had more at stake and would get a better security position than he currently had. Gord said he
was willing to do that. I asked Gord what his intentions were as to if he simply wanted to get
4 paid back or if he was after the farm somewhat similar to what it appeared Farrar’s intentions
might have been. Gord’s answer was that he had no intention of owning John’s land and simply
wanted to get paid back and would be happy to take a real estate mortgage on the property.

.. That satisfied my concerns that Gord was not going after John’s land and so I contacted John and
* told him about our conversation. Apparently John went ahead and made a deal directly with
4 Gord understanding that Gord was only going to get a real estate mortgage and would not be
going after John’s farm.

. WCA/af

 E—



Dear Ransom County Court;

My name is Don Olson, 1am the manager of Dakota Plains Coop in Lishon NO, and [ want the caurtto
know that John and Lorie Finstad are paying on a bill that is the responsibility of Jim and Wendy Gord.

sked if lim Gord could charge fuel to feed his cows on the finstad farm. John also

john came to me and a
t is. a common. practice for

f we would do some soil testing on the: land owned by john and Lorie. |
renters to test the rented land so that the correct amount of fertilizer s applied for the cropsto be
grown. | phone Jim Gord and | asked him about charging these things and he stated that he would pay
There were some payments made during the spring,
ent to pasture and the crops

asked i

the bill upon 2 phone call and a receipt from us.
but then there were no more payments made to the coop after the cows w
were planted. After repeated attempts to collect this amount from Jim we served John and Lorie
Finstad with a Small Claims Summons. john contacted me and reminded us of lim responsibility of the
bill. We had put the bill on Johns account and fim is 700 miles away. John and Lorie Finstad have stated
that they will pay the bill in instaliments starting on the 15" of November, 2012,

Don Qlsan Dakota Plains Coop

g ey
Qf)fv L{;/Qrv’ 3. 20-/3
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7/25/2013

Dear lim and Wendy Gord; ‘
Al and I'have been notified of what you testified to-in the eviction hearing in December of 2011
with respect to John and Lorie Finstad. We haven't decided if we will send this Affidavit to the courts to
= express our displeasure of your use of our names for your benefit. We normally wouldn’t want to get
involved but what you did is wrong and a fie. The following is what we may be sending to the courts to
help John and Lorie prove that they are the rightful owners.

Dear Ransom County Court; )
We live in the Leonard, North:Dakota area and our mailing address is 15360:577 St SE. Our
L " s . " i Lin-the-pastwe-have-raised-cattle and-farmed.—ithasbeen hrmjghf

to our attention that testimony was given in an eviction hearing with regard to John and Lorie Finstad
and their farm and their residence located at 14060 Hwy 27, Lishon, ND 58054.
We would like to respond to the Testimony made by lim Gord in the eviction hearing on
Y 12/19/2011. We would like to say first that John did everything he couid to help in the growing of crops,
/ whether it was driving a tractor, starting or stopping Johns’ irrigation pivots. John even would take
supper out to other employees if it would be 2 late night. When we would work the cattle in the spring
prior to the cattle going to pasture lohns wife would make us food and provided us with beverages.
Repairs to Johns’ irrigation. equipment and pumps and mators were done by John. With respect
to the cattle, John:not only provided the money for a lot of the operating expenses without
reimbursement from Jim, for a majority of the time, buthe also did all of the work associated with the
care, maintenance and calving of the cows for no compensation while we were paid for any of our
efforts. In one instance John gave us (Scott and Al Johnson} a 1% calf heifer to replace one of the cows
~ that fim Gord had bought from us to satisfy the Grazing Association rules. John didn't have to do this for
us but he wanted to make it fight with us and Jim Gord. The cow that died got on her back and bloated.
The vet was called and it was verified, that the death was as a result from a bioat. We later bought our
~ cows back from Jim and we got back the same number of cows. During the summer we {et Johin use our
ATV to take care of the cows, John not only took care of the cows but he took care of our ATV. John
replaced the front wheel bearings when they needed replacing and fohn even fixed a broken leaf spring
on our 5™ wheel stock trailer and like the care of the cows, John did this with no compensation to
himself. Another time John went out to our pasture to fix our fence and put our cattle in when we were
down south truck for the wheat harvest. John:alsc helped us work cattle in the spring and for all of this
John never asked us for any money.
In Jims’ testimony he stated that John wasn’t taking care of the cattle, that is not what we ever
observed in alf the times we saw the cattle. The only reason for any deficiency in the care and
maintenance of the cattle is strictly because of Jim Gords” neglect. John and Lorie always showed a



genuine jove and care for the cattle. John was always courteous and very helpful despite the situation
with respect tohis farm. We would also like the court to know that we never spoke to Jim about any of
these statements that lim stated in his testimony. We were never asked for an affidavit about these
claims that jim referred toin the eviction hearing.

Our relationship was brought about by the relationship of Troy Galtz who was farming the land for
Jim Gord. Inthe beginning of 2011 there was a change in the relationship between fim and Troy so we
really didn’t have anything to-do with the cattle after that.

\Mﬁ 7%% o QM@'V\ /}/@é\@m

Scott Jehnson Al Johnson ‘ (/




FROM THE DESK OF
WARRENN C. ANDERSON
46675 State Highway 28
Morris, MN 56267
(320) 760-2781 cell
warrennf@homeiownsolitions.net

December 1, 2014

Jim Gord
4450 E. Sandwich Road
Sandwich, I1l 60548

RE: John Finstad

Pesrime

LAWY, o ) T T T

You and I spoke on the phone quite a number of years ago regarding the John Finstad matter.

John has asked me to write a letter to you memorializing my recollection of that phone call as
best [ am able. Maybe a little background first.

I met John about 6 years ago. I owned an interest in a credit company from whom John was
trying to get funds to pay off yourself and Frank Farrar. While the credit company was unwilling
to make a loan to John being he was out of their territory, they suggested John talk with me since
the credit company knew I had an interest in acquiring farmland. John asked if I would pay off
Frank who had a First Mortgage of about $65,000.00 on the farmland, Then John explained to
me that you had a secured second mortgage on the land for $350,000.00 and other debt of
$175,000.00 owed to you. I called Frank up, we discussed the situation and he stated to me that
he was not interested in continuing his relationship with John and simply wanted to be out of the
picture. He was willing to let me take over his position for full payment. I then called you, I told
you I was willing and able to take Frank out but that you seemed to be more involved and it
seemed more appropriate for you to do that. I also told you this property contained John’s home
and that [ had no interest in getting into a hassle over someone’s home as this was just an interest
in helping John and Lorie to get back on their feet again. You agreed and said you felt the same
way, that you simply were helping out John and his wife in pait because of the tough luck they
had had in their life. You said your goal was not to end up with John’s land or his home.

While I would have been willing and was able to take Frank and you out at the time, I felt good
about your attitude and promises to me that you were not trying to take advantage of John. I
followed up with John and indicated he should simply work directly with you, that your
intentions were good and that you were just trying to help John out, :
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Page 2 continued
December 1, 2014
Jim Gord

Should you have questions regarding this letter certainly feel free to give me a call on my cell at
320-760-2781. I do not know all of what has gone on between yourself and John but I understand

considerablelitigation has ensued and that you have received the benefit of catfle, grain and
rental income from the Finstads farm. T will be more than happy to participate in any
proceedings that would aid John and Lorie in getting their property back and that I would hope
that you would honor your words to me. My final comment would be that John and his wife
have the opportunity to own their homestead and farmland understanding, of course, that they
need to pay their just debts to you and your family.

Regards,

Warrenn Anderson
WCA/km



February 16, 2015
Dear Wendy and Jim,

| have wanted to visit with you for quite some time but never felt the time was right until now.
First, there are several things | have wanted to say in regards to testimony presented in court. One item
Mr. Nelson brought out in court was that your interest was not protected under our bankruptcy. How-
ever, | firmly believed your interest was protected under our bankruptcy conditions. One thing | insisted
on during the bankruptcy was that our equity in the land be protected in the event we failed to make
our payments to Frank Farrar. At the time of the bankruptcy we had several family members who had
borrowed us some money, and | wanted their interests to be protected. | also was concerned about
having money for a home if we ever lost the farm. We entrusted our attorney to represent our interests
and believed he did so. Your first attorney, John Brakke, received in writing documentation that your
interests were secured.

Another thing that came out in court testimony is that you were unhappy with how we took care of
your cattle. | have to take exception with that. Jim, | remember talking to you in my kitchen about you
purchasing cattle and my feelings about it. | remember telling you that | was fine with the arrangement
because we would not have any financial responsibilities. | also felt we had an obligation to take care of
your cattle without benefit of wages as a way to show appreciation for keeping the grazing permit

active—We-also-wanted-to-seeyoumake-a-profit—The-firstyearofrunning-cattle-went-smeothly=—Troy-
was in charge of delivering feed and did so in a timely manner, and we had favorable spring weather
that lent to a 100% calf crop. The second winter and spring became a nightmare for us. | don’t know
what kind of arrangement you had with Troy. We assumed he owed you money and was buying hay as
a way to pay you for debts owed. However, he wasn’t delivering quality hay; he was delivering ditch hay
with hub caps and other kinds of garbage in it. Several cows died of hardware which we had confirmed
by the veterinarian when he came out and opened up several of the cows. | also believe John had the
vet call you. I’'m not sure what kind of stories Troy was telling you, but he was less than honest if he was
telling you that there was nothing wrong with the hay. You may not trust John’s abilities, but he does
recognize good feed. Then one day during the spring of 2011 when John called Troy about delivering
feed, Troy stated he was no longer helping you. When John tried contacting you, you would not return
his calls. Because there was no feed or money to purchase feed, we had to turn the cattle out on the
half section to forage for corn in the snow. In the meantime John was begging neighbors for feed. |
watched my husband cry as he watched your cattle go hungry and begin to abort their calves. Once the
grass greened up that spring it was impossible to keep hungry cattle confined. | was contacted by the
sheriff one day at school and had to leave work to help get the cattle in. Jim, | believe you let us down
at this time. | really wish | knew what you were thinking. As agreed upon, the cattle had always been
your financial responsibility not ours. As it turned out we did cover many of your cattle expenses over
that year and a half period, from veterinarian expenses, to repairs, to paying the electricity to water the
cattle, to hiring people to help work cattle, as well as other miscellaneous costs.

At the eviction hearing | believe the judge favored your side because he bought into the story that
you needed to put a farm manager on the farm to comply with the grazing rules. | find it ironic that no
one has lived on the farm to care for the cattle since we left three years ago, but we never left your
animals alone for one night in the almost two years that we cared for them. It's a small community here
in Lisbon, and we know that Ron is not running the cattle operation on the farm even though the permit
is in his name. Jim, you also stated in court that John was interfering with the farming operation. Yes,
John drove tractor several times for Troy in the spring and ran the irrigators during the summer months
so Troy wouldn’t have to make special trips to Lisbon. These were favors Troy asked of John, and John
was more than willing to help. | will say that John expressed his concerns to me on many occasions of
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his belief that Troy was possibly taking advantage of you financially. One example that comes to mind
was during the fall of 2010 when Troy was custom combining your corn. Troy was hauling your wet corn
to Leonard to dry at his facility and then hauling the corn back to Sheldon Elevator to sell when the
elevator wasn’t even discounting the corn at the harvested moisture. When John would call you about
the different things he saw happening on the farm you may have viewed it as interference, but it was his
only way of keeping you informed.

Another statement from Mr. Nelson during court proceedings was his belief that we were only
interested in getting the farm back because land values had gone up. Purchasing the farm was a lifetime
dream of ours. John worked his ass off for twenty five years to make improvements. During that time
he also worked off the farm to help with the farming expenses. We never so much as took a vacation
together, and John never bought anything extra for himself. (I don’t think Troy Goltz could say the same
during the time he owed you money.) We sacrificed everything to keep the home we raised our children
in. It may not have seemed like much to you, but it was our home. | won’t even go into the feelings we
have about the burning of our mobile home, a structure whose title is in our name. No amount of
money, or other piece of land, can replace the love we have for our farm. Even after the eviction, we
went out to the farm to mow because it was too hard seeing everything go to hell.

The main reason that | am writing is that | think it is time to address the issue of debt owed to you
and fairness owed to us. We failed in our payments, and you went back on your word to work with us.
You had a chance to be paid off by another investor, Warren Anderson. Did you really plan to work with

—ys;orwereyouhoping-to-takethe-farm-at-that-point™We-did-havetwo-banks; Bakota-Plains-€redit-—————

Union and the Bank of North Dakota, who were interested in helping to finance the farm in the fall of
2011 as a means to pay you off. When John told you of this you told him you couldn’t work with him,
and shortly after that we were evicted from the farm. John and | also talked to Ron that fall and asked
him to step back from the situation so that we could try to work with you. Ron told me he was
concerned for your cows. | believe he was more concerned about stepping in to rent the farm and
getting his stepson, Adam Johnson, a job. John and | each have a $210,000 judgment that remains on
our credit reports. It was always our intention to take care of this debt when we refinanced the farm.
The Bank of North Dakota is stilling willing to work with us to finance the farm provided a dollar amount
can be submitted to them. We have been working with Bob Humann, Senior Vice President of the Bank
of North Dakota, should you wish to verify this.

To protect our interests, John and | filed a breach of contract civil lawsuit in federal court. We
didn’t want to go this route, but felt we had no other choice. We are not willing to walk away from
everything we worked so hard for including the equity we accumulated over a 25 year period. Wendy
and Jim, it was always our intention to pay our debt to you, and we had made arrangements to do so
with the help of Warren Anderson in 2009 and again in the fall of 2011 with Dakota Plains Credit Union
and the Bank of North Dakota.

| pray that you have a change of heart and would be willing to talk to John and me so we can honor
the debt owed to you and negotiate a way to get our farm back. |can’t think of one good reason why
you would want to own land in North Dakota or keep us from our home. Randy Panzer is willing to act
as a mediator. We just want to see this matter settled in a way that is fair to all of us and doesn’t
involve more legal fees. If you don’t want to contact us directly, please let Randy know what your
decision is. | think you owe us that much. '

Sincerely,
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July 9, 2017

Dear Randy

Thank you for being an ear for john. As | know, it is difficult to hear John talk about the farm
over and over again. Truly, it totally consumes him and becomes wearing for everyone concerned. If we
had lost the farm to a traditional foreclosure it would have been difficult but easier to accept, at least on
my part.

When we went through the bankruptcy it was | who advocated for a clause to be included for
the protection of those people, family and friends, who had borrowed us money to keep the farm
operational. In the case of a foreclosure the land was to be sold, and we were to receive any money left
over after paying off the lender. The equity in our farm would have provided us the ability to pay off our
debts to the people who had supperted us. Whatis difficult to bear is that we have let people down
because we did not get the equity out of our land. | feel the legal system failed us on that account by
not recognizing our bankruptcy agreement.

| am truly thankful for your willingness to speak with Jim on our behalf. We have tried to make
one contact by phone and fater sent a letter only to have it returned unopened. Since Jim and Wendy
are unwilling to have contact with us, it seems an intermediary is needed. | recognize that you
contacting Jim and Wendy will need to be done on your time table, not John’s or mine. | don’t have my

i aauldn’t hanafithim
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Ropes up that Jim will agreeto the-sateofthe farnrasmuehrtime-has: passed-and-itwotldn-t-beneHtim:
financially. | don’t think that a man of character would have stolen a half million dollars of equity from a
family and then leave them homeless and destitute, not to mention the piles of bills he’s tried to pass
off onto us. We both know that John is precariously holding on to the belief that Jim will have a change
of heart. It is the only thing that keeps him going.

You may not be aware of the fact that Jim has a judgment on John and one on me for $240,000.
'm wondering if he thought we owed him $480,000 at the time the judgment was put in place which is
under but an amount close to what we thought we owed him. Unfortunately the judgments remain in
place which is something | hope you could address with Jim. 1think that Jim has been more than
compensated for what we borrowed from him and that he needs to dismiss those judgments against us.

There is more that | could say, but | feel you have been more than supportive and don’t need to
be burdened with our problems. Thank you for your support.

Sincerely,
Lorie Finstad
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{ U-p.dater Cases (257)1

11 11 U.s.C. § 1327(a) states clearly: “The provisions of a confirmed plan bind the debtor and each creditor, whether or
not the claim of such creditor is provided for by the plan and whether or not such creditor has objected to, has accepted, or
has rejected the plan.”* “[BJind" means “to put under . . . legal restraint, or contract . . . to be obligatory.”? Section 1327(a) is a
strong statement: The terms of a confirmed plan are legal obligations of the debtor and all creditors without regard to whether
the plan provides for the creditor’s claim and without regard to whether the creditor participated in the confirmation process.3

2 The confirmation order defines the rights of creditors against the debtor and the debtor's property, displacing
prepetition contracts, court orders, state law and the "equities” of prepetition events.* For example, a creditor with a contract
right to receive $200 per month for the installment purchase of a car is bound by confirmation to accept what the plan
proposes to pay for the car without regard to the prepetition contract.> Unsecured claim holders are entitled to nothing more
(or less) than what the plan provides in full satisfaction of all prepetition rights to payment from the debtor. Some courts have
described the effect of confirmation of a Chapter 13 plan in terms similer to those used to describe the effect of a Chapter 11

5 : i i Eii _ .
confirmation—the-making-of-“anew-agreement-between-the-debtorand-the-creditor-with-a-new. obligation-te-be-paid-in-the

manner provided for by the terms of the plan."® The confirmed Chapter 13 plan controls the debtor-creditor relationship unless
and until the plan is modified or the creditor is relieved of its effects. This binding effect is in some respects even more
compelling than a new contract and is reciprocally enforceable by the debtor and all creditors.?

i3] The fundamental binding effect of confirmation under § 1327(a) has been honored in a vast number of reported
decisions. If notice is adequate,® the creditor that fails to object to confirmation and then to appeal an adverse decision? is
bound by the confirmed plan even if it contains provisions that are inconsistent with the Code that could have been defeated
by a timely objection*® A confirmed plan cannot be collaterally attacked after confirmation under the guise of other contests
such as a request for relief from the stay or a motion to dismiss. Debtars and trustees are just as bound by confirmation as
creditors—confirmation precludes debtor or trustee behavior that is inconsistent with the plan. 12

) Many courts describe the effect of confirmation as res judicata with respect to all issues that were or could have been
litigated at or before the hearing on confirmation.12 This resort to judge-made principles of preclusion is usually not harmful,
but § 1327(a) is a comprehensive statutory declaration of binding effect that is not dependent on or limited by the
conventional rules for preclusion. For example, ordinarily the preclusive effect of a judgment can be altered by contract or
agreement between the parties to-the original judgment. However, it has been held that the terms of a confirmed Chapter 13
plan cannot be altered by private agreements between the debtor and creditors.*

5} Perhaps more importantly, the statutery formulation of binding effect in § 1327(a) is broader than the res Jjudicata
effect of an ordinary judgment in the federal courts. A confirmed plan binds even creditors that are not pravided for by the
plan and without regard to whether the creditor responded to the proposed plan by acceptance or rejection?* As is
demonstrated below,'® some courts have misapplied res judicata to find limitations on the effect of a confirmed plan that fails
to prowde for a creditor when § 1327(a) clearly states that such a plan is binding even on a creditor that is not provided for by
the plan.16

16} The Ninth Circuit in Espinosa v. United Student Aid Funds, Inc,*” explained the important distinction between the res
Judicata effect of a confirmation order and the statutory effect of confirmation under § 1327(a). Res judicata applies to "giving
the judgment in the bankruptcy case preclusive effect in another case."*® When the context is enforcement of the confirmation
and discharge orders in the bankruptcy court that issued them, res Jjudicata is not in play; rather, the binding effect of
confirmation is often realized, as it was in Espinosa, through the discharge injunction:

A dxscharge injunction does not operate by way of res Judlcata it is, rather an equltable remedy preciudmg the creditor, on(
pam of contempt, from taking any action to enforce the discharged debt. . . . A discharge injunction could also have resr
Judicata effect, if the creditor were to try to enforce the debt by bringing a post-descharge lawsuit, but the discharge mjunctlon'
prevents him from even commencing the second suit where the res judicata issue could be litigated. There was no second
]aWSult in our case, 1 i j

7]
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Examples of the binding effect of confirmation under § 1327(a) are plentiful. The confirmation order is a binding
determination of the debtor's eligibility for Chapter 13, precluding a postconfirmation motion to dismiss on the ground that
the debtor was ineligible from the beginning of the case.20 It has been held that the confirmation order in a Chapter 13 case s
res judicata with respect to the subject matter jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court.?® Confirmation may determine what is
included in property of the estate.22 Confirmation preciudes relief from the stay when the creditor unsuccessfully objected to
confirmation on the same grounds.?® A creditor cannot use a postconfirmation motion for relief from the stay to collaterally
attack the confirmed plan if the creditor failed to object or appeal the order of confirmation, notwithstanding that the
confirmed plan contains provisions the creditor could have defeated with a timely objection.?* Even a creditor that was granted
relief from the stay before confirmation is bound by the confirmed plan to accept the treatment provided in the plan.Z5 A
creditor excepted by statute from the automatic stay—for example, a creditor attempting to collect child support that falls
within the broad exception in § 362(b)(2)25—is still bound by the confirmed plan and risks sanctions for violating the confirmed
plan by continued collection efforts. The Eleventh Circuit held the Florida Department of Revenue in contempt for violation of a
confirmed plan that provided for child support arrearage when the Department attempted to collect more than the plan
provided.?’

18) Confirmation is a binding determination that the debtor satisfies the disposable income test, thus some courts have
held that confirmation precludes a creditor's postconfirmation motion to require the debtor to commit future tax refunds to,
the trustee.?®

1] Because good faith is one of the conditions for confirmation in § 1325(a), confirmation precludes refitigation of the
debtor's good faith on a motion to dismiss.2? A creditor that neglected to raise a best-interests-of-creditars-test objection
before confirmation is precluded from raising that objection collaterally, for example, in opposition to a debtor's motion to
modify the plan after confirmation.3? The confirmation order is preclusive of all "adequate protection” arguments a creditor
might have made under § 361 of the Code 31 Confirmation of a plan that is specific with respect to the value of collateral,3? the
payment or rate of interest and other rights of secured claim holders is binding on lienholders notwithstanding the filing of an
inconsistent prosf of &lairn33 A confirmed plan that treats a lease as o disguised security agreewmient binds the creditor 1o
accept the present value of its collateral through the plan.34 Plan confirmed without objection that treated “contract for title” as

an.ordinary secured claim frumps.a postconfirmation nroof of claim.asserting that_the contract is executary and can only be

assumed under § 365.3°

0] Assumption of a lease in a confirmed plan has binding effects. For example, when the plan assumed a vehicle lease to
be paid directly by the debtor, the lessor was precluded to later claim an administrative expense upon the debtor's default.36

ek A pawnbroker is bound by confirmation of a plan that treated the pawn transaction as an ordinary secured claim
notwithstanding that an objection to confirmation would have defeated the plan.3?

12 All creditors are bound by the order of payment of claims if fixed in the confirmed plan.32

112 The US. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit held that failure to object to confirmation is fatal to a creditor’s
objections to a plan that fails to provide the present value required by § 1325(a)(5).3? Similarly, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Seventh Circuit held that confirmation binds a secured claim holder to accept surrender of part of its collateral in full
satisfaction of its secured claim notwithstanding that the property surrendered is worth less than the amount the creditor was
entitled to had it timely objected to confirmation.4® When the debtor's car is destroyed after confirmation and insurance pays

the value, § 1327(a) generally limits the lienholder to the balance of its secured claim, not the entire proceeds of the insurance
ey AL
policy.

114} The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit held that a taxing authority’s failure to object to confirmation left it
bound by a plan that redeemed property from a tax foreclosure judgment, "[elven assuming that the order confirming the plan
was in error”2 The US. Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit held that res judicata and § 1327(a) prevented the IRS from
ransoming its tax lien for more than the precise amount of itts allowed secured claim fixed by the order of confirmation: "Absent
timely appeal, the confirmed plan is res judicata and its terms are not subject to collateral attack. . . . [Tihe IRS was entitled to
no more and the [debtors] were obligated to pay no less than the amounts set out in the Plan and confirmation order3 A
taxing authority that needs tax returns from the debtor before it can determine whether to object to confirmation must act
before confirmation to get those returns because confirmation will severely limit options for opposing the plan.** Property tax
creditors are bound by confirmation. For example, when the plan paid less interest than state law or § 511%5 required, the
purchaser of a tax claim was bound by its failure to object before confirmation.*6

[15] Confirmation orders can be binding with respect to the liability of the debtor and, on strong facts, can affect the
rights of creditors against third parties. For example, a plan that expressly provided "the alleged secured claim of Factors
Funding, Inc. is hereby discharged as there is no underlying obligation” precluded allowance of any claim filed by Factors
Funding, Inc.#” Confirmation of a plan that substituted the debtor's daughter as the borrower on a car note and provided that
the underlying debt would be paid "outside the plan by the debtor's daughter” barred the creditor's claim against the debtor
when the daughter surrendered the car after confirmation.48 A creditor is bound by a provision prohibiting action against a
cosigner notwithstanding that the confirmed plan is broader than the statutory protection of cosigners in § 130142 An
assignee in privity with the original lender is bound by a confirmed plan.50

[16]
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Creditors are bound by plan provisions that preserve avoidance actions. For example, notwithstanding controversy about the
standing of Chapter 13 debtors to bring avoidance actions,5 when the plan specifically reserved the debtor's right to bring
such an action, the defendant is hound by confirmation. 52

17 Real estate mortgages and liens are affected in many ways by confirmation orders in Chapter 13 cases.”3 A properly
noticed secured creditor that fails to object to confirmation may be deemed to have accepted the treatment of its claim.’* The
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit and several other courts have held that the failure to object to confirmation binds
the mortgage holder to accept payment in full without interest when the plan calls for payment of the secured claim without
interest.5* A mortgage holder is bound by a confirmed plan that bifurcated its claim and modified the unsecured portian when
the mortgage holder filed a claim but failed to object to confirmation. 5

{18} Notwithstanding the Supreme Court's declaration in Nobelman v. American Savings Bank>7 that § 1322(b)(2) prohibits
bifurcation of an undersecured claim that is secured only by real property that is the debtor’s principal residence,>8 it is widely
held that a wholly unsecured home mortgage is not protected from modification.5® Nobelman did not address whether a
mortgage holder is bound by failure to object to confirmation of a plan that bifurcates its claim in violation of § 1322(b)(2).
Several reported decisions conclude that an undersecured mortgage holder is bound by confirmation of a plan that bifurcates
its claim when the creditor sits on its rights after proper notice of the plan.®® Discussed elsewhere in detail,*1 even a plan
provision that impermissibly modifies a mortgage is binding, and the mortgage creditor must apply payments according to the
plan when the creditor fails to object to confirmation, 52

[19) Although not completely without controversy, many courts have held that confirmation of a plan can strip a wholly
unsecured mortgage without the separate filing of an adversary proceeding.53 In SLw Capital, LLC v. Mansaray-Ruffin (in re
Mansaray-Ruffin),%* the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit distinguished lien stripping from attacking the validity of a
mortgage, stating that “the concept of 'lien stripping’ is related to the valuation of collateral, not the validity of a fien.” While an
attack on validity requires an adversary proceeding under Bankruptcy Rule 7001(2), the Mansaray-Ruffin court concluded that
stripping an unsecured mortgage. did not. Applying this distinction, & bankruptcy court in the Third Circuit concluded that a-
Chapter 13 plan can reclassify the claim of a wholly unsecured mortgage without the filing of an adversary proceeding. 83

[20] When the plan cures default and maintains payment on a long-term mortgage under § 1322(b)(5),56 the mertgage
holder is bound by confirmation to accept the monthly payment specified in the plan notwithstanding that the contract
required a different amount and a timely objection to confirmation would have prohibited the change in terms.57 A plan that
fails to pay mortgage arrearages or that provides for arrearages in an amount different than that claimed by the mortgage
holder is binding absent timely objection to confirmation.58 A confirmed plan may obligate the mortgage holder or servicer to
notify the debtor and trustee of escrow or other changes in mortgage payments.5% A mortgage holder that fails to object to
confirmation is precluded from attacking a plan provision for payment of arrearages without interest, notwithstanding Supreme
Court authority entitling the creditor to interest on defaults cured through the plan.”®

[21] A prepetition foreclosure sale won't help a mortgagee that fails to object to confirmation of a plan that continues
payments as if nothing happened before the petition—the foreclosing creditor is bound to accept payments for the life of the
Chapter 13 plan.”t A confirmed plan providing “’Debtors hereby rescind said transaction with Household Finance Corporation
I is binding with respect to rescission of a home mortgage held by HFC.72

[22) Postconfirmation relief from the stay is not necessarily going to restore happiness for the mortgage holder that failed
to object to an unfavorable plan. As explained by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the First Circuit in Carvalho v. Federal National
Mortgage Ass'n (In re Carvalho),”® a confirmed plan that bifurcated an undersecured mortgage that was not protected from
medification by § 1322(b)(2)74 “is not annulled by the mere act of granting relief from the automatic stay." 73

123] The binding effect of confirmation applies with full force to claims entitled to priority”® and full payment?” through
the plan. For example, many reported cases recognize that taxing authorities are bound by § 1327(a) to accept the payment of
priority claims provided by the plan even when inconsistent with a timely filed proof of claim, so long as notice to the
government was adequate,’®

[24] Section 1327(a) states that the binding effect of confirmation extends to each creditor "whether or not the claim of
such creditor is provided for by the plan, and whether or not such creditor has objected to, has accepted or has rejected the
plan."”® Even a plan that is entirely silent with respect to a creditor or class of claims is binding unless the creditor objects to
confirmation or appeals the order of confirmation.89 Silence in a plan with respect to retention of liens can bind the lienholder
to a confirmed plan that fimits or eliminates altogether the creditor's prepetition lien.8%

1251 The binding effect of § 1327(a) applies with full force to modification of confirmed plans, provided that modification
is properly noticed.®? Courts sometimes view plan modification targeted at a specific claim as the functional equivalent of a
claim-objection, Conflicting views with respect to plans that are inconsistent with filed claims are discussed elsewhere, 83

{261 Until recently the U.S. Courts of Appeals for the Ninth and Tenth Circuits had reported especially clear statements of
the binding effect of confirmation of Chapter 13 plans in cases dealing with the discharge of student loans; the Tenth Circuit
retreated,®* but the Ninth Circuit stayed the course.85 Most educational loans are not dischargeable in a Chapter 13 case
unless the debtor files an adversary proceeding and proves the undue hardship exception to the nondischargeability of student
loans under § 523(a)(8).8¢ At about the same time, enterprising debtors’ lawyers in the Ninth and Tenth Circuits had the same
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The United States is a nation of laws. Many, many laws. We have city laws, county laws, state laws,
and federal laws. The enforcement of each law is constrained by a jurisdiction. Federal laws
typically apply everywhere within the United States; state laws only within the state borders. So,
what happens when a state allows certain conduct within its borders that is illegal under federal
law? And, more important as a practical matter, is a person or company entitled to the benefits of
the federal bankruptcy laws when engaged in a permitted state activity that is a federal crime?

This uncommon situation has been addressed in several recent bankruptcy cases involving
medical marijuana operations. Currently, 23 states have legalized medical marijuana, six have
decriminalized marijuana use, and the states of Colorado and Washington have legalized
recreational cannabis use. This despite the federal law that makes marijuana use illegal for any
reason, even with a medical prescription. The Supreme Court held in the 2005 case of Gonzales v.
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compliance with state law, he is breeching the federal Controlled Substances Act. The debtor, a
marijuana distributor and producer, sought Chapter 7 bankruptcy protection and listed $556,000
in unsecured debt. He also identified roughly 25 marijuana plants, each valued at $250, which
could have been liquidated to pay creditors, but the trustee could not take control of the plants
without breaking federal law. The bankruptcy judge stated that that the case could not be
converted to a Chapter 13, because the bankruptcy plan would be financed “from profits of an
ongoing criminal activity under federal law.” The judge added, “Violations of federal law create
significant impediments to the debtors’ ability to seek relief from their debts under federal
bankruptcy laws in a federal bankruptcy court.”

Each bankruptcy case implicates both federal and state laws. If you are contemplating
restructuring your debts through bankruptcy, speak with an experienced attorney to discuss your
situation.

FREEDOM LAW FIRM

'F (https://www.facebook.com/ Haines-Krieger-Attorneys-at-Law- Las-Vegas-
124959610863750/)
o (https://twitter.com/vegasbankruptcy)
in (https://www.linkedin.com/authwall?

trk=bf&trkinfo= AQFWcEo R2aQezQAAAWu4jaT43x_erH EdgSQHL30JL5W4g DuoqzlGF
y9RxV3$gnUsuy4DWRA80jiV_KA7PKwW915cuAL_Sny6ujur_dGa
YiRm1LGPsM =&originalReferer=&sessionRedirect=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedir
2Fhaines—%26—krieger—attorneys-at—law—las—vegas)
[ > (https://www.youtube.com/user/lasvegasbankruptcy)

Contact Us

Q@ 89855 Eastern Ave #350
Las Vegas, NV 89123

o 702—880—5554(tel:%20702—880—5554)

1] 702—385—5578(tel:%20702—385—5518)



When State Law Conflicts with Federal Law, Bankruptcy Debtors May Lose | Freedom L... Page 3 of 3







